Public Document Pack

C\’\;GDII .
i1 Y Filint
i " Contact Officer:
!ilulgxgbul re Sharon Thomas / 01352 702324

sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

To: Clir Ray Hughes (Chairman)

Councillors: Mike Allport, Haydn Bateman, Sean Bibby, Chris Dolphin,
Andy Dunbobbin, David Evans, Veronica Gay, Cindy Hinds, Dave Hughes,
Joe Johnson, Colin Legg, Vicky Perfect, Paul Shotton and Owen Thomas

6 December 2017
Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Environment Overview & Scrutiny
Committee which will be held at 10.00 am on Tuesday, 12th December, 2017 in the
Delyn Committee Room, County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA to consider the following items

* Please note that there will be an information session by the Food Safety
team, which is for the members of the Committee only, commencing at 9.30am
before the public session commences at 10am.

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.
3 MINUTES (Pages 3 - 8)

Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on
17 October 2017.

4  PEST CONTROL (Pages 9 - 16)

Report of Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) - Cabinet Member for
Planning and Public Protection

Purpose: To receive a report outlining the services provided to Flintshire
residents by the Pest Control Team.



MOLD FLOOD ALLEVIATION SCHEME - REVIEW OF OPTIONS
FEASIBILITY (Pages 17 - 64)

Report of Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) - Cabinet Member for
Planning and Public Protection

Purpose: To receive a progress report on the proposed scheme.
COUNCIL PLAN 2017/18 - MID YEAR MONITORING (Pages 65 - 84)

Report of Chief Officer (Planning and Environment), Chief Officer (Streetscene
and Transportation) - Cabinet Member for Planning and Public Protection,
Cabinet Member for Streetscene and Countryside

Purpose: To review the levels of progress in the achievement of
activities, performance levels and current risk levels as
identified in the Council Plan 2017/18.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 85 - 90)

Report of Environment Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator -

Purpose: To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Yours sincerely

Qo]

Robert Robins
Democratic Services Manager



31.

32.

33.

Agenda Iltem 3

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 OCTOBER 2017

Minutes of the meeting of the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee of
Flintshire County Council held in the Delyn Committee Room, County Hall, Mold
on Tuesday, 17 October 2017

PRESENT: Councillor Ray Hughes (Chairman)

Councillors: Mike Allport, Haydn Bateman, Sean Bibby, Chris Dolphin,
Andy Dunbobbin, David Evans, Veronica Gay, Cindy Hinds, Dave Hughes,
Joe Johnson, Colin Legg, Vicky Perfect, Paul Shotton and Owen Thomas

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Bernie Attridge and Patrick Heesom attended as
observers

CONTRIBUTORS: Councillor Aaron Shotton, Leader and Cabinet Member for
Finance, Councillor Chris Bithell, Cabinet Member for Planning & Public
Protection; Councillor Carolyn Thomas, Cabinet Member for Streetscene &
Countryside; Chief Officer (Planning & Environment); and Chief Officer
(Streetscene & Transportation), Finance Manager (minute no. 33), Highways
Network Manager (minute no. 36), North Wales Residual Waste Treatment
Project (NWRWTP) Contract Manager (minute no.38)

IN ATTENDANCE: Environment Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator and
Democratic Services Officer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

VARIATION IN ORDER OF BUSINESS

Following a suggestion by the Chair, a change in the order of business
was agreed to bring forward agenda item 4, Financial Forecast and Stage One
of the Budget 2018/19.

FINANCIAL FORECAST AND STAGE ONE OF THE BUDGET 2018/19

The Finance Manager introduced a report to provide the current financial
forecast position for 2018/19 and consult on the Stage 1 Council Fund Revenue
budget proposals for 2018/19. He provided background information and
referred to the financial forecast which had been reported to Cabinet in July
2017 and was detailed in the report. He advised that the reported “gap” was
£11.7m due to national, local, and workforce pressures, and the latest
projections for inflation.

The Finance Manager gave a brief update on the Provisional Local

Government Settlement for Wales for 2018/19 which was announced last week.
He emphasised that the Settlement was provisional at this stage and that

Page 3



specific grant confirmations were due to be received on 24 October. He
advised that the provisional Settlement indicated a 0.9% reduction in funding to
the Authority which would increase the “gap” by £1.6 - £1.9m due to the new
responsibility for homelessness and unresolved pressures. The Finance
Manager explained that a statement on the provisional Settlement and Stage 2
of the budget process would be made at the meetings of the Corporate
Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 19 October, and Cabinet on 24
October, and analysis of the Settlement would follow to all Members.

Councillor Aaron Shotton spoke of the negative impact of the provisional
Settlement and the implications of a further reduction in funding. He advised
that the Authority and the Welsh Local Government Association would continue
to enforce its lobbying case robustly for “betterment” before the Final Settlement
was announced in December. Councillor Shotton commented that much rested
on the Chancellor's UK budget statement in November and the possibility of
some improvement in the austerity measures imposed to date.

The Finance Manager reported on the main considerations as detailed
in the report concerning emerging pressures, specific portfolio pressures,
inflation and risks.

The Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) and the Chief Officer
(Planning and Environment) reported on the specific portfolio pressures and
operating model efficiencies for their respective portfolios. The Chief Officers
also reported on the current resilience position for their portfolios which was
appended to the report and which set out the context for the savings and
efficiencies proposed for 2018/19. Further details on the portfolio options for
savings and efficiencies were included in the Operating Models appended to
the report.

During discussion the Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation)
responded to the comments and questions raised around streetlighting and the
introduction of a no side waste policy which would coincide with the introduction
of a charge to discourage people from leaving garden waste as side waste.

The Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) agreed to meet with
Councillor Chris Dolphin to discuss the specific concerns expressed around
repair and maintenance of roads and streetlighting in his Ward.

The Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) responded to the
questions around planning fee income. He advised that many services within
the Planning portfolio were mandatory and that collaboration may be
considered as an option for some of the services, however, he explained that
whilst this may provide resilience it would not necessarily save costs.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the Committee’s comments on the portfolio budget options and the
portfolio financial pressures be noted; and

Page 4



34.

35.

(b)  That the Committee was satisfied with the approach being taken to
Stage One of the Council Fund Revenue budget 2018/19 for the
Streetscene and Transportation and Planning and Environment
portfolios.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2017 were submitted.
Matters arising
Revised Environmental Enforcement and Car parking arrangements
Page 9: Councillor Andy Dunbobbin explained that his point was about what

learning the Authority could take from the way private enforcement operators
worked with a view to providing an in-house service after 2 years.

Page 9: In response to a request from Councillor Veronica Gay concerning the
location of Fixed Penalty Notices the Cabinet Member advised that she had
requested that an extra column be added for future reports to include
information on time and location.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

BURIAL STRATEGY AND BEREAVEMENT SERVICES

The Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) introduced the report
to provide information on the activities of the Bereavement Services Team
within Streetscene and Transportation and proposals to extend the service for
residents. He provided background information and advised that there were a
number of challenges and risks facing the service which needed to be
addressed and the report detailed these and the proposals to deal with them.

The Chief Officer reported on the main considerations, as detailed in the
report, around the memorial safety policy, grounds maintenance, public health
burials, burial space, and child burial fees. The Chief Officer advised that
grounds maintenance was one of the largest costs incurred by the service and,
referring to ways in which the Council could reduce costs in the future, it was
proposed that the Service look to develop a policy of working with Town and
Community Councils and local communities by establishing local volunteer
groups to undertake maintenance works within the cemeteries. Councillor Paul
Shotton spoke in support of this suggestion as a way forward. Councillor Owen
Thomas asked if consideration had been given to spraying grass to slow down
growth within cemeteries. The Chief Officer agreed to make further enquiries
into this.

Councillor David Evans asked if consideration had been given to
establishing a new cemetery as opposed to extending the existing sites. The

Page 5



36.

Chief Officer advised that all options were being considered and the Council’s
Asset Team were looking at potential sites.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Committee recommends that the Cabinet approves the
changes to the current inspection and management arrangement for
memorials within Council owned cemeteries;

(b)  That the Committee recommends that the Cabinet approves plans to
investigate partnership agreements with local communities to deliver
grounds maintenance for cemeteries and closed churchyards;

(c)  That the Committee recommends that the Cabinet approves the new
arrangements for house searches, in respect of Public Health burials;

(d)  That the current capacity within the Council owned cemeteries be noted;
and

(e)  Thatthe committee recommends that the Cabinet approves the adoption
of the Memorandum of Understanding being developed by Welsh
Government to standardise Child Burial Fees across Wales.

POTHOLES AND RESURFACING PROGRAMMES

The Highways Network Manager introduced a report to provide an
update on the processes used to identify resurfacing programmes and the
preferred methods of repairing and maintaining the highway network. He
advised that the report outlined the approach to detect identification, including
the inspection regime and the intervention levels operated by the Council. The
report also provided details on capital expenditure and investment levels on the
various highway assets, the preferred treatment option for carriageways such
as patching, surface dressing or resurfacing and the cost benefit of temporary
pothole repairs.

In response to the concerns raised by Councillor Chris Dolphin around
the condition of some roads, the Highways Network Manager advised that
regular safety inspections took place and any defects were noted and the
necessary repair work arranged. Defects which required urgent attention were
corrected or made safe at the time of the inspection. Defects which did not
represent an immediate hazard or risk were programmed for repair within the
times defined within the policy as set out in the report. The Highways Network
Manager acknowledged the concerns raised by Councillor Dolphin and agreed
to meet him following the meeting to discuss the specific problems within his
Ward concerning road maintenance and street lighting. The Highways Network
Manager advised that the Council reviewed its inspection policy every 2 years
and a revised ‘Policy for Highway and Car Park Safety Inspections, Intervention
Criteria and Response Times’ would be submitted to Cabinet for approval by
July 2018.

Page 6



37.

In response to the comments and suggestions by Members regarding
the need to explore the use of alternative types of materials for road surface
dressings, the Chief Officer said a number of alternative products had been
used in the past and he would continue to make enquiries on the suggestions
put forward and report back his findings to a future meeting of the Committee.

During discussion it was agreed that Members would be provided with
information on when highway safety inspections were undertaken in their
Wards and feedback on the condition scores would be provided.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT PROJECT (NWRWTP)

The North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project (NWRWTP)
Contract Manager introduced a report to provide an update on the North Wales
Regional Waste Partnership. He provided background information and advised
that following the successful award of the North Wales Residual Waste
Treatment Project contract to Wheelabrator Technologies Inc (WTI) the Parc
Adfer waste treatment facility on Deeside Industrial Pak was now under
construction. The contract term with Wheelabrator Technologies Inc was 25
years. The five partner authorities had also signed an Inter Authority
Agreement which formalised their partnership for the duration of the contract.
Members were informed that Parc Adfer would be fully operational by 2020.
Wheelabrator Technologies Inc had engaged with the local community and
would continue to do so throughout the construction process and into the future.

Members spoke in support of the Community Benefit Fund which would
become available when Parc Adfer was operational and would have a value of
£230k per annum for community projects in the Deeside area. The NWRWTP
Contract Manager advised that in addition to the Community Benefit Fund WTI
had launched their own construction phase community fund of £50k over the
construction period.

Councillor Aaron Shotton also spoke in support of the Community
Benefit Fund and said this would be welcomed by community groups and would
benefit residents in the Deeside area. He explained that the Council would
decide how the Community Benefit Fund was allocated and further details
concerning this would be provided to the Committee. Councillor Shotton also
spoke of the positive outcome that the gate fees payable would be lower than
the guideline or ‘bid’ price which had been set at the outset.

In response to a question from Councillor Owen Thomas the NWRWTP

Contract Manager advised that a railway link was not part of the current plan,
however, there was potential to attach a railway link in the future.

Page 7



38.

39.

Following a suggestion by the NWRWTP Contract Manager, it was
agreed that the Facilitator would arrange for Members to have a site visit to the
Parc Adfer waste treatment facility on Deeside Industrial Park.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the progress of the construction of Parc Adfer be noted; and

(b)  That the scheduled operational date for Parc Adfer be noted.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Facilitator presented the current Forward Work Programme for
consideration.

The facilitator advised that a workshop had been arranged in November to
include School Transport. Clir David Evans agreed that whilst a workshop may
be a suitable way to take this matter forward, the item should remain as an item
for the Committee for the present time, pending the outcome of the workshop.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the Forward Work Programme be noted; and

(b) That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, be
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as

the need arises.

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There was one member of the press in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 12.18pm)

Chairman

Page 8



Agenda Item 4

Sir y Fflint
"'E!Era!g!z.!re

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Tuesday 12 December 2017
Report Subject Overview of Flintshire County Council’s Pest Control
Service
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Planning and Public Protection
Report Author Chief Officer (Planning and Environment)
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the work undertaken by
Flintshire County Council’s Pest Control Service.

Although it is a non-statutory service it fulfils an important role in supporting the
public health agenda. In particular, rats and mice transmit a number of serious
diseases. If they gain access to properties they can spread disease, cause damage
and contaminate food. Since April 2015 all aspects of the service offered by
Flintshire County Council are chargeable, which is consistent with the position
adopted by other local authorities in the region.

In Flintshire the team of three officers also undertake dog warden duties, which is a
statutory service the authority must offer in accordance with the Environmental
Protection Act 1990.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Members to note the contents of the report, and promote the Pest Control
Service within their local communities, where possible.

Page 9



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | OVERVIEW OF FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S PEST CONTROL
SERVICE
1.01 | As part of the Planning and Environment’s business planning process the
Pest Control Service was identified as a service that should, eventually,
become self-financing. Ambitious, incremental, income targets were set for
the service over a four year period.
1.02 | The team offers a professional and comprehensive service, treating the
following types of pests:
» Rats
= Mice
* Fleas
» Wasps
= Crawling ants
Services range from basic advice on pest prevention to the direct control of
pests. The rates offered are competitive and include follow-up visits, with
concessions available (at present) on the full rate if the service user is in
receipt of certain benefits. All pest control officers are fully trained and
qualified to industry standards.
Maintenance contracts are also available with an annual fixed price. These
contracts are tailored to the client’s needs and include regular scheduled
inspections, pest monitors and an information binder.
1.03 | Since January 2016 there has been a concerted effort to try and improve

the uptake of the service through promotion.

Some of the positive developments to support and promote the service are
as follows:

= Appointment of a corporately funded Flintshire Trainee in September
2016.

= Design and distribution of new leaflets. Leaflet drops have been
made, targeting, in particular, newer housing estates who may not
have been included in the mass mail out which was done in early
2016.

= Articles promoting the service have been distributed via the press
and social media.

» Letters have been sent to businesses in the area and subsequent
phone calls made to discuss pest control contracts.

= Work has also been undertaken to assist the Environmental Control
Team where there have been complaints of filthy and verminous

Page 10




properties.

1.04

The progress of the service is monitored at the Planning and Environment
Programme Board.

2.00

FINANCE AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

At present there is an in-year risk of not achieving the Pest Control fee
income target for 2017/18, with a shortfall of approximately £0.043m
projected.

Prior to financial year 2015/16, Pest Control income targets were set at
approximately £30,000 annually with fee income consistently falling short
annually on average of 50%. The income target was raised in 2015/16 as
part of the 3 year Business Planning efficiencies at a rate of 79% from
£31,919 to £57,229.

2.02

Pest Control fees are reviewed annually and increased in line with inflation.
In 2015/16 the fees were reviewed and restructured in line with commercial
organisations to demonstrate a competent and competitive service. A
widespread increased marketing exercise and publicity promotion to
introduce the service to both domestic and commercial areas and widen the
customer base within Flintshire was undertaken. The fee shortfall in-year
was an improvement on previous years at 39%. The 2nd and 3rd year of the
Business Planning efficiencies have seen the income target further
increased to its current level of £100,229. In-year monitoring has shown that
the income target is not being achieved.

2.03

The number of Pest Control calls also increased in 2016/17 following the
publicity from the previous year. This, however has now reduced in the first
half of 2017/18.

2.04

The largest number of pest control fees received are in the £20 - £60 range.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

None required as a result of this report.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

The progress of the service is monitored through the Planning and
Environment Programme Board.

5.00

APPENDICES

Page 11




5.01

Appendix A — Schedule of Charges
Appendix B — Publicity Leaflet

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01
Contact Officer: Sian Jones, Community and Business Protection Manager
Telephone: 01352 702132
E-mail: sian-jones@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | None

Page 12




Pest Control and Dog Warden Service Fees 2016-17

Activity

|Fees

Notes

Pest Control

Rats and Mice (Private

£50 (£60 inc VAT)

Household)

Wasps £45 (£53 inc VAT)
Bees £15 (£18 inc VAT)
Ants £41 (£49 inc VAT)

Fleas (Private Householders)

£54 (£64 inc VAT)

Concessionary Fee

£10 Bees (£12 inc VAT)
£30 all other (£36 inc VAT)

Concessionary fee is for
all the pest control fees
and is for householders on
Disability Living
Allowance, Income
Support, Job Seekers
Allowance or State
Pension.

If more than one treatment
is required during each
visit, an additional charge
of half the unit rate will
apply per additional

Internal council depts. And
businesses within Flintshire

Rats, mice, wasps, ants, fleas

treatment.
Commercial Business Premises | £48 (£58 inc VAT) First visit including
(inc Schools) materials.

Subsequent visits charged
in quarter of an hour
increments of the £48
figure.

Stray Dogs

Return of stray dogs directly to
owners

£20

This will apply where dogs

can be identified by

microchip or tag and

owners are available to receive
the dog.

Page 13




This page is intentionally left blank



est Control
SEen/ices

Sir y Fflint
“* Hlintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Who are we?

Flintshire Gounty Council Pest Control offers
a professional and comprehensive service for

co.%aoBmmzom:aoo_.:Bma_m_n_.mEmésm:..
YOU need it most. 5 %

What do we do? .

Our services range from basic advice on pest
prevention to the direct control of rodents
and insects.

Our rates are competitive and include follow-
up visits.

All our work is carried out in line with current
health and safety regulations, protecting
non-target animals. All pest control officers
are fully trained and qualified to industry
standards.

We use pesticides and preventative
measures to ensure that the infestations
are identified and remedied as quickly and
humanely as possible. We also provide
information on how to prevent the pests
returning.

We currently offer the removal of the following
pests:

* Rats
¢  Mice
*  Fleas S ¢

¢ Wasps _
¢ Crawling ants \

For other pests, please refer to the
Yellow Pages or www.yell.com.

{
}

Commercial contracts

We offer maintenance contracts to services
and organisations who require on-going
support.

A pest maintenance contract with Flintshire
County Council is tailored to suit your
individual needs and provides the following:

* Regular scheduled inspections by our
pest control officers;

* Pest monitors installed throughout the
site;

* Anannual fixed price for the term of the
coniract;

* information binder (containing sumnoary
of visits, contract specifications, siteTisk
assessments, pesticide safety data m@u

useful contact numbers). m.a

Get in touch!

For professional advice and more information,
call Flintshire County Council’s Streetscene
Call Centre on 01352 701234 or email
pestcontrol@flintshire.gov.uk.

You can also visit our page on the Council's
website www. flintshire.gov.uk.




: _ P o %.\ s W0 ANIOD
s "WOD |9A MMM Nau JdIysjunjy
= ay
mmmmn_ MO|[BA 18 UOMUIBIAD ‘|iesd nejd I19jAB 1y u:__ u—“_ A S1TN
Brubioy e e
t JM. L, umoeD e
uemyD) e

o N :
%_r . pobA e

s o MBI POBATT e

“WNAcB ugANS M 10BUAD ) ‘JouAluED

A UBJOM JE UB[EPNE U,B PIoMWA PAISY UOMIED S : neid A Je pasemb jpeb umed 'pAuq o uAy iy

“Mn°‘AoB aaysiuy) ‘PABMUDAD

@(01u0d)sad Yomisog-a nau vEZ L0L ZSELO _ Beys neyd A [e1e 11N Wwe yieepogimb

Je 4 A g 1oBuin pAilS neylseueseme) A niedsep uA pAjay WApPAY “1eppoIpp JUApPPI

M|y UBJjOUBD) UJOMILIOY ‘Ulsepogim b gay e [gqisoyd e pajuAb uAa onmAo ne

0 JoBeys e ouAIsayosd JobBuko peb | - IpouU N3 [9eD UA nejd A pog nNeylaIs | [olele

nensaw e JAmppeeid oippAuiep uA WApAY

iU B YoMJ|IASAD WepAMP

J4,neuojes | SAmMWAB uA DB ume|| u IppJopAy

‘(loippAuep YmMsAD Nejuyl e preippifeld n,ipam nejd 110au UCIBOPPAMS [[OY 1,981

yomabolp ejep 'syes A Bsu nepelsase ‘pabiep uA JUAPA peu pregepiue npBoipp ueb

"J0BAIUOD NeqgajAUBW ‘NepeIamWA O ‘lopajAa yomsboip e pAyoal nepeljoay) e

gapouild sAMUUAD UA) UIBBpogAMm 18] e |OUn LA PNBumm 18 |8BD UA Yllem |joy ute aely
JoBRIJUOD

"JOUA|IR NepeliamWA SAMUUAD

A powha 1ol 1. joppAudiq BopAles sitd uA 9B jong|peISAB U, neppeIIAD ue sew

‘ayes A smelp
Je posob n,ipsm nejd oIuow JBYO e ‘JoyauABuoun uk
‘ned 1oaL uoIBoppPAMS LR pajfuyd e pojyoud 1joa | ne(d eje Je |ousey|As
ueb nuyal} N,IPam PPIE|0BL] NEPBIBAONY e 10BUAB © oimfswe u neyjaeuesemB uie aey

;ouAuED 1 nuediep uA oe jobun ¥~ ¢ Pnaum 19 UA WAPA yieg
uouaybue Yo, e pulj-pAb | BIMm|IBp 18 |88 UA /
Iu epAb nejd mpeyo B [BUUAD 10BAUCD 8B . teAmy
% “ |HO yooue usbue 18 pphy ued joyoeuseW
‘sneyted YLOWAD Fig e Bnsawop prenuaig)f | imesAMmyuiyo e .m _ Q — _ O o s m
usBue ppAs nepe)pAlas B neyloeuesem | [ouAisagosd LiseuesemB Biuuiod uA juipq A .

MPEBUO B [eUUAD NejoeuoD BILUAD UA WAPAY 1S 10BUAD) Bld 1108UH NBYISEUBSEME) BN

|oyDBUSEW NBIDBAUOY) % ,'\ﬁm ¢, U WAPA Avg j,m ﬁt.@,@ Cﬂm,m\u\/\/@



Agenda Iltem 5

Sir y Fflint
"E!m!o%!z.ire

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Tuesday 12 December, 2017
Report Subject Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme — Review of Options
Feasibility
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Planning and Public Protection
Report Author Chief Officer (Planning & Environment)
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Welsh Government requested information to be submitted by October 2017 from
all Lead Local Flood Authorities (LLFAs) describing any Flood and Coastal Risk
Management (FCERM) capital works that are being considered for progression
within the next five year period. This has enabled Welsh Government to develop
its ‘five year pipeline programme of FCERM schemes’. This pipeline includes
schemes led by both local authorities and Natural Resources Wales (NRW), and
allows the alignment of Welsh Government funding to these priority schemes.

This report updates Members on one of these important projects, highlighting
recent work led by the Council’s Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management
(FCERM) Team relating to a review of feasible options for designing and delivering
a Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the individual opportunities identified in the Waterco Feasibility Study
for ‘smart flood management’ in Mold are progressed to ‘Project Appraisal
Report’ stage so that initial options identified are progressed and tested
further in terms of their economic viability and therefore future deliverability
through Welsh Government’s pipeline programme.

Page 17



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

UPDATE OF THE MOLD FLOOD ALLEVIATION SCHEME

1.01

In May 2017, Welsh Government wrote to all Lead Local Flood Authorities
(Appendix A) outlining changes to their long term capital settlement and
the need to establish a national pipeline of Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk
Management (FCERM) schemes to take forward as part of their flood
programme. A newly established FCERM programme board will now
assist Welsh Government to consider and prioritise all schemes from both
local authorities and NRW.

1.02

This new structured approach will promote transparency and consistency
and allow Welsh Government and Local Authorities to better plan schemes
over multiple years and assist in making the case for future settlement
rounds. In conjunction with the new arrangements Welsh Government will
be shortly releasing their revised project appraisal guidance for FCERM
schemes based primarily on the ‘Five Case Model'.

1.03

All Lead Local Flood Authorities were requested to submit to Welsh
Government details of all schemes (over £100k) being considered over the
next five years. Schemes at Project Appraisal (PAR), Design or
Construction stages are eligible for application for grant funding of up to
85%.

1.04

The benefits of contributing to the Welsh Government pipeline of projects
are that flood risk improvements in Flintshire can potentially be delivered
with the support of grant funding opportunities, which in turn illustrates the
need for preparedness and forward planning of projects to be able to
access those funding opportunities.

Appendix B provides a useful overview of the stages of standard FCERM
capital projects and the typical resource, funding and timing arrangements.

It should be noted that Welsh Government’s five year pipeline programme
applies only to large scale works. Other related programmes are available
such as the ‘Small Scale Flood Risk Management Grant’. Appendix C
provides a short summary of the present funding options available for
FCERM capital works.

1.05

One of these principal schemes relates to Mold Flood Alleviation where the
FCERM Team has recently commissioned a review of the previous
scheme design and feasibility work. The previous scheme, designed and
developed on behalf of the local authority by Ymgynghoriaeth Gwynedd
Consultancy (YGC), consisted of a culverted bypass channel to the west of
Mold and large underground attenuation tanks at Ysgol Glanrafon. A cost
review indicated construction budgets would be in excess of £12m, making
this scheme economically unfeasible and unaffordable. The design carries
additional risks in relation to legal, environmental, technical, and
maintenance aspects of the proposal.

Page 18




1.06

Waterco Consultants were therefore commissioned in late 2016 to
undertake the task of building upon the previous scheme information and
exploring alternative options to deliver flood risk mitigation in Mold. This
feasibility study was asked to take account the effectiveness, affordability
and reliability of the approaches identified.

A copy of the Waterco Consultant’s study: ‘Mold Flood Alleviation — Smart
Flood Management” is provided in Appendix D.

In summary the study identifies the following key opportunities:

Infrastructure improvements through Mold (pages 9-13)
Upstream catchment attenuation (pages14-15)

Cae Bracty resilience measures (page 20)

Catchment diversions (pages 22-23)

1.09

The ‘Smart Flood Management’ — Opportunity Maps on pages 33 and 34
provides a useful visual overview of each of the opportunities identified.

1.10

This report recommends that the options identified for Mold in the Waterco
study are progressed to the next stage of Project Appraisal (PAR) to
further test their economic cases and potential deliverability.

In order to maximise the potential deliverability of the components of the
scheme, it is proposed to that each opportunity be assessed as a
standalone smaller scheme and also as part of a suite of phased schemes
in accordance with the new national project appraisal guidance. This will
conclude where viable business cases exists, and support grant
applications if progressed to detailed design and/or construction stages
through Welsh Government’s ‘pipeline programme’.

This approach offers some advantages over the previous larger scheme,
as the potential for longer-term phased delivery of works may be more
deliverable and achievable within budgetary and resource constraints.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

Personnel: The capacity of most local authorities to deliver large flood
infrastructure schemes has diminished in recent years through a
combination of budget pressures and a decreasing technical staff
resource. For Flintshire Council to deliver successful FCERM projects
requires adapting to the role of ‘informed client’, using a smaller pool of
internal technical staff to procure external expertise and resources as is
necessary for each individual project.

Measures are already underway to modernise the Council’s approach to
flood risk management, including implementing an asset management
database (AMX) to record and manage all local flood and drainage
infrastructure, flood history, etc. This is a statutory requirement under the
Flood and Water Management Act 2010. Such improvements are essential

Page 19




to ensure the Council can support ongoing and future grant applications
with robust evidence and standardised data consistent with Welsh
Government requirements.

2.02

Financial: As outlined in Appendix C, the majority (75-85%) of FCERM
capital works costs for PAR, Design and Construction stages is funded
through Welsh Government grant funding, with a local authority
contributing the balance through its capital budget. These favourable rates
allow Lead Local Flood Authorities to deliver schemes and improve local
infrastructure that may otherwise be unaffordable through the Council’s
core capital budget. Notwithstanding the above, a 15% contribution rate
may still present a significant demand on core capital budgets, particularly
on larger schemes. Therefore individual bids and business cases will need
to be made in line with the Council’s approval process i.e. Asset
Programme Board approval, Cabinet approval and Full Council approval.

Developing and maintaining a transparent and robust programme of local
FCERM projects is critical to ensure that Flintshire avails of ongoing and
future FCERM grant funding to deliver local improvements where needs
arise.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

Not applicable.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

As noted in Welsh Governments letter (Appendix A): “By not including
schemes to us by the end of September deadline you risk not being able to
progress schemes at a later date as the programme up to March 2021 will
be published in late Autumn”

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

A: Letter from Welsh Government of 17t May 2017: Development of a
pipeline of Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management schemes.

5.02

B: An Overview of the Typical Stages of FCERM Capital Projects.

5.03

C: Current Funding Options Available for Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk
Management Capital Works

5.04

D: ‘Mold Flood Alleviation — Smart Flood Management — Feasibility Study
Report and Opportunity Map’

Page 20




6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | Contact Officer: Ruairi Barry (Project Engineer FCERM)
Telephone: 01352 704707
E-mail: Ruairi.Barry@Flintshire.qov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | FCERM Programme — A nationally based Welsh Government funded

programme for identifying priority schemes to address flooding issues,
prioritised on the basis of risk to life.

Lead Local Flood Authority — Flintshire County Council is a Lead Local
Flood Authority (LLFA) and has powers and duties for managing flooding
from local sources.

NRW - Natural Resources Wales

Feasibility Study — An initial assessment of the flooding issues that
require mitigation and a scoping of the opportunities and options to
develop a solution.

Project Appraisal Report — A more detailed case for proceeding with a
project or proposal, involving comparing various options, using economic
appraisal.

Page 21



mailto:Ruairi.Barry@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



’\/ (f
)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

17" May 2017

Dear Lead Local Flood Officer,
Development of a pipeline of Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management schemes

As part of continued improvements to our Programme, we have committed to prioritising the
Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM) Schemes nationally based on risk
to life and also to create a prioritised pipeline of schemes to be taken forward. This pipeline
will include schemes led by both local authorities and Natural Resources Wales (NRW).

We have recently received a longer term capital settlement rather than an annual budget,
and know what our yearly budgets will be for the next four years, up to the end of March
2021. We now need to establish a national pipeline of schemes to take forward as part of
the flood programme. This will also assist in verifying the required levels of capital funding
following the committed 4 years.

Pipeline of flood and coastal risk management schemes
To help us to bring together a national pipeline of schemes we need information about what
schemes local authorities and NRW are considering over the coming years.

Whilst budgets are confirmed for 4 years, we are looking for you to consider what you may
be planning over the next 5 years, which will then be combined with the NRW medium term
plan and prioritised nationally with the support of the FCERM Programme Board.

The FCERM Programme Board was established in December 2016 and includes
representation from Welsh Government, NRW, WLGA, two local authorities, DWwr Cymru
Welsh Water (DCWW) and the Institution of Civil Engineers. The Board will assist us to
consider all schemes from local authorities and NRW and to prioritise these schemes using
the Communities at Risk Register along with information about local flood risk and historic
flooding.

Benefits

A prioritised pipeline of schemes is something we have been looking to bring together for a
while. As we now have a confirmed four year budget settlement for flood and coastal
erosion risk management, this pipeline will allow us to better plan schemes over multiple
years and make the case for future budget settlement rounds.

£ Cathays Park Tel: 0300 062 5696
(4 N Yy
8 8 BUDDSODDWYR | INVESTORS Cardiff Email: sarah.dafydd@wales.gsi.gov.uk
N _« MEWN POBL | IN PEOPLE CF10 3NQ Website: www.wales.gov.uk

Page 23


file:///C:/Users/JardineL/AppData/www.wales.gov.uk

We will be able to share with local authorities and NRW the prioritised pipeline, meaning
that you will be able to see where your schemes fit within a national scale programme and
when funding is likely to be available.

A prioritised pipeline will ensure funding is focussed on the most at risk areas across the
whole of Wales and provide a more transparent method for allocating funding both to risk
management authorities and the public.

Understanding the location and type of works planned around the country will allow us to
consider with local authorities whether similar schemes in neighbouring authorities could
progress together and also link with NRW or DCWW’s works. This is in line with our aim of
a catchment management approach and further promoting regional working. This could
also provide economic benefits as well as potentially reducing disruption to the public.

What information do we need from you?

In order to generate a pipeline of potential schemes, we need to gather information about
schemes which local authorities may be considering submitting to Welsh Government
seeking grant funding for between now and March 2021. This includes all schemes with
expected construction costs over £100K (below this value, works should proceed through
the small scale works grant).

The attached spreadsheet asks for basic information about proposed flood (ordinary
watercourse and surface water) and coastal works. Information you provide should set out
all stages of a scheme separately with your programmed dates for taking each stage
forward. Guidance is attached at the bottom of this letter explaining the information being
asked for.

We recognise that some of this information, particularly around plans for the next 5 years,
may not be readily available, therefore we are proposing that this is collected in a 2 phased
approach. Firstly, schemes that are ready, or will be ready, to be put forward for the
2018/19 programme will be considered in detail at the next FCERM Programme Board
meeting at the end of June. Secondly, we will bring together a 5 year pipeline to be
published in autumn 2017. Please see below details of what information is being requested
and by when.

e By Wednesday 14™ June 2017
o Full details on the attached spreadsheet of schemes which you are likely to be
seeking funding for in the next financial year and what stage they are currently at.
o Draft details of scheme to be included within the 5 year pipeline.

e By end September 2017
o Full details on the attached spreadsheet of the schemes you are considering over
the next 5 years, or
o An email explaining why your local authority is not considering any schemes over
the next 5 year period.

For local authorities not putting forward any schemes for the 5 year pipeline, please provide
an explanation for this decision. By not including schemes to us by the end of
September deadline you risk not being able to progress schemes at a later date, as
the programme up to March 2021 will be published in late autumn.

Page 24



We are aware that you cannot always plan where and when funding may be needed
quickly, for example damages following a flood event, however any requests for emergency
funding to make repairs to flood damaged assets will be considered on a case by case
basis in discussion with the Welsh Government Flood Team and in consultation with the
FCERM Programme Board.

Please do not include schemes you have already submitted for the Coastal Risk
Management Programme. If this programme is over subscribed and schemes are not
successful, these will be placed into this pipeline.

If you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me by email at
sarah.dafydd@wales.gsi.gov.uk or by phone on 0300 062 5696.

Please return completed spreadsheets for phase one to me by Wednesday 14" June.

Yours sincerely,

— S TS .

Sarah Dafydd
Programme Manager, Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management, Welsh Government

Guidance for completion of spreadsheet

Please complete one line of the spreadsheet for every stage (PAR, design, construction) of
each scheme which you are considering taking forward

For ease of completion, please find below summary of information we are looking for under

each heading

e Location — please provide the nearest town/village and postcode — this should link to the

Communities at Risk Register area

Grid Reference (Eastings and northings)

Communities at risk rank — combined max ranking

Local evidence of flood risk — what is your evidence — S19 reports, modelling etc.

Historic flood events — Dates of recent flooding, numbers of properties affected etc.

Stage of work — PAR, Design, Construction

Estimated cost — for each stage of the scheme

Benefits to properties — estimated number of properties at risk, split homes and

businesses where possible

Programmed start and end dates — for each stage of the scheme

e Link to FRMP/LFRMS — What is the strategic context — how does this link to your Flood
Risk Management Plan or Local Flood Risk Management Strategy

Page 25


mailto:sarah.dafydd@wales.gsi.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B: An Overview of the Typical Stages of FCERM Capital Projects

STAGE 1: IDENTIFICATION OF ISSUES

e Overview: Local Authorities identify a risk/issue problem generally using historical data from flood
events (S19 Flood Investigation Reports) or evidence of failing coastal defences. This stage tends to be
reactive and draws upon local knowledge and observations.

e Resource: Local Authority (in-house)

e  Funding: Local Authority

e Timing: Built up over time utilising flood data, flood event history and observations from officers and
the public.

STAGE 2: STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE (Pre-feasibility or Viability studies)

e Overview: The purpose of this stage is to confirm the strategic context of the issues and to provide
robust evidence for a case for action. Typically this may involve site specific surveys and investigations,
often some basic hydraulic modelling. The outcomes of this stage should be a long list of potential
options for further consideration and appraisal.

e Resource: Local Authority (in-house). Limited us of external consultants e.g. for modelling/survey work.

e  Funding: Local Authority (occasionally may be eligible for WG grant support)

e  Timing: SOCs should be achievable within 3 months.

STAGE 3: OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE (Project Appraisal Report)

e Overview: Further identification of the problem and modelling of extreme events. Investigates and
compares the long list of options and intervention scenarios against a ‘do nothing’ scenario. Uses
benefit-cost analysis in line with national Flood and Coastal Defence Project Appraisal Guidance
(FCDPAGS3) to arrive at the most feasible and economically best value for money solution.

e Resource: Local Authority staff and external consultants.

e  Funding: WG grant funding available for up to 85% costs, remainder via LA core capital

e Timing: 6 — 12 months

STAGE 4: FULL BUSINESS CASE (Design and Development)

e  Overview: Further detailed modelling and design of the preferred option, formal consultation with
statutory consultees and often a public consultation exercise. Obtaining necessary consents, planning
permission, EIA etc. Preparation of contract drawings and tender documents with tender process likely
to have to comply with OJEU process.

e Resource: External consultants required across several specialisms e.g. QS, design etc.

e  Funding: WG grant funding available for up to 85% costs, remainder via LA core capital.

e  Timing: Minimum of 12 months.

STAGE 5: PROJECT DELIVERY (Construction)

e  Overview: Submission to WG of application for construction costs of agreed scheme accompanied by
tender documents and all necessary consents and agreements to carry out works. Following tender
process full costs are used for approval letter. Works delivered as per tender.

e Resource: LA staff, external consultants and civil engineering contractors.

e  Funding: WG grant funding available for up to 85% costs, remainder via LA core capital.

e Timing: 3 —12 months subject to scale.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C: CURRENT FUNDING OPTIONS AVAILABLE FOR FLOOD & COASTAL
EROSION RISK MANAGEMENT (FCERM) CAPITAL WORKS

e Flintshire County Council - Core Capital Funding.

e Welsh Government’s FCERM Capital Programme (5 year pipeline of flood and coastal risk
management schemes). This national programme provides opportunities for Local Authorities to
bid for WG grant funding for FCERM capital works. At present the grant contribution rates are 85%
towards fluvial and land drainage schemes and 75% towards coastal schemes.

e Coastal Risk Management Programme (CRMP 2018-2021). This programme provides a one-off
opportunity for local authorities to implement transformational projects for our coastline and
coastal communities with Welsh Government contributing 75% of project design and construction
costs and up to 100% for the initial strategic and/or outline business case stages.

o Welsh Government’s Small Scale FCERM Works Grant. A grant for smaller flood and coastal risk
management works which can progress relatively quickly. Uses a more simplified application
process rather than the traditional route of carrying out a full project appraisal report. Applicable
to works up to a maximum value of £100k. Grant contribution rates are in line with the current
grant rates for the Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Programme; 85% for land drainage
or 75% coastal works.

e Other: Occasionally other grant funding opportunities may arise that FCERM capital works, may
be eligible to apply for. Particularly projects that can demonstrate wider benefits in line with
Wellbeing and Future Generation Act goals e.g. NRW’s 2018/19 ‘Open Call for projects’.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



“Oater“co

consultants

Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme

Smart Flood Management

Feasibility Study and Opportunity Map

Waterco Ltd, Eden Court, Lon Parcwr Business Park, Ruthin, Denbighshire LL15 1NJ
Tel: 01824 702220 Email: enquirie@&gecadg.uk Web: www.waterco.co.uk

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM


mailto:enquiries@waterco.co.uk
http://www.waterco.co.uk/

Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme

DOCUMENT VERIFICATION RECORD

Smart FM feasibility study

CLIENT:

SCHEME:

INSTRUCTION:

Flintshire County Council

Mold FAS — Smart Flood Management —
feasibility study and opportunity map

The instruction to carry out this report was received from Mr Ruairi Barry
Project Engineer Flood and Coastal Risk Management, Flintshire County

Council, on 18th October 2016

DOCUMENT REVIEW & APPROVAL

AUTHOR: Deepak Kharat PhD BE (Civil) MTech (WRE) CSci CWEM MCIWEM
CHECKER: Steve Conway BSc. MRes.(Hydrology)
APPROVER: Peter Jones BSc C.Eng C.WEM FICE MCIWEM

ISSUE HISTORY

ISSUE DATE

COMMENTS

20/03/2017

First issue

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM

oaterc

“’“”“““



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Contents

INEFOAUCTION .ttt st ettt e bt e b e s bt e st e et e e bt e bt e s bt e sbeesateenteebeenneesanenas 1
Smart Flood Management APProach.........ciicciieiiieiiiee e ccieee ettt e riee e s sree e s s sbee e s s sbe e e s e snbee e e s nreeas 2
L 1o [0 [0 -4V SRS 4
INFrastruCture IMPrOVEMENTS ..ooccuiiiiiccieee et e et e e st e e e s aba e e e ssabeeeessstaeeesansseeesnnsseeesns 9
Upstream attenuation storages for SMart FIMl........cooiiiiiiiiee ettt e s 14
Smart FM implementation.......ueei i e e st e e e sraaeeesnes 19
(6 1= 2] - [ 1 T T T T T T U TP PP P PP T PP 20
CatChmMENT dIVEISIONS ...ttt ettt e st e e st e s bt e s bee e sabeesbeesneeesabeeennees 22
Joint working, funding and additional benefits ........ccccueieiiiiiiic 24
CONCIUSIONS ...ttt ettt et s bt e st e e e s ab e e s bt e e bbe e s bt e e bbeesabeesabaeesabeesabeeennbeesasanenans 25
Action plan and BUAEEt COSTINGS...uiiiuiiiiiiiiiie et e e e e e sra e e e e sbae e e sesbaeeesannreeeean 26
Recommended Strategic NeXt ACHIONS ...ccicciiiiiiiiie e e s 27
Appendices

Smart System Diagram
Flow diagram

Opportunity Map

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM OEter‘CO
consu tants



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Figures

Figure 1: Integrated model for Mold Smart Flood Management System ........ccccceevvcieeiinciieeeeciieeeeens 2
Figure 2: Assessing attenuation storage capacity for a Smart Flood Management system................... 2
Figure 3 Main catchments: Gwernaffield (green outline) and Gwernymynydd (red outline)................ 4
Figure 4: GlobalMapper generated CatChmMENtS......coocuviiiiiiiiii e 6
Figure 5: Cae Bracty CatChmMENT .....cooi i st e e s s e e e s sareeeesanes 8
Figure 6: Missing information and NetWOrk iSSUES ........euivvciiiiiiciiie e 9
Figure 7: MIKE Urban MoOdel SETUP ..ccccuiiieiiiiiie ettt sttt e s e e e e et e e e saaae e e ssnbaeeesnanneeaens 10
Figure 8: Potential locations for infrastructure improvements......cccccveeevcieeecicieee e 11
Figure 9: Model output showing reduction in max flood depth post network improvements............ 11
Figure 10: Negative slopes elsewhere in the sewerage & drainage network ........ccccccveeevvcveeeiinnennnn. 12
Figure 11: Max flood extents near Cae Bracty comparison for 100CC event........cccceevveeerivveeeeicnneennn. 12
Figure 12: Max flood extents from Gwernaffield flows only for 100CC event .......ccccccveeevivveeeriineennn. 13
Figure 13: Marsh attenuation StOrage ar€a....coccuiiiecciiie e ae e e e saaaeeeens 16
Figure 14: Queens Park attenuation StOrage ar€a......cccvecceieeeeeciiee e e 17
Figure 15: Ruthin Road attenuation StOrage area ......c.cccvvecvveeieiiee e 18
Figure 16: PUmping station at Cae BraCly.....cccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecc ettt e e s s ssaree e e e s s s sainnnee 21
Figure 17: Diversion options for any residual flood flOWS ..........ccceeiviiiiiciiiii e 22
Tables

Table 1: Catchments draining iNto MOId ...........uuiiiiiei e e enenees 4
Table 2: required attenuation storage volumes for individual catchments ...........ccccccveeiiiiieeeeccnen.n. 14
Table 3: Salient details of the identified attenuation storage areas ..........cccceeeecieeeeciieeecccveee e, 15

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM OEter‘CD
consu tants



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Introduction

Mold has a long history of flooding with extensive residential and commercial areas having suffered
in the last decade on several occasions. Previous studies have identified some 81 residential and 10
commercial properties as being at risk of flooding. One of the areas, Cae Bracty, is particularly prone
to flooding. An earlier flood alleviation scheme encountered budget constraints and landowner
objections.

Waterco were commissioned by Flintshire County Council (FCC) to look at the use of Smart Flood
Management (Smart FM) to reduce flood risk more cost effectively. Smart FM is an extension of
Natural Flood Management (as further described in the next section).

This feasibility study aims to build upon the previous investigations by exploring ways in which Smart
FM can reduce flood risk in Mold from fluvial flows generated in the upper catchments, as well as
the pluvial flows generated by the rainfall directly over the town; and in particular, the following:

1. Infrastructure improvements: using the existing pipework model (developed as part of the
FAS study) to examine whether relatively short lengths of upsized or dual culvert would
make a worthwhile difference to the overall system capacity.

2. Upstream catchment attenuation using Smart FM: investigate opportunities for ‘smart’
natural flood management - such that relatively small storage volumes, activated just at the
peak of the event, will allow the infrastructure (improved as item 1) to carry residual flows.

3. Cae Bracty: undertake a study of this area and in conjunction with the development of
infrastructure and attenuation options (in the context of items 1 and 2 above); consider the
available options.

4. Catchment diversions: assess the potential for retaining part of the proposed cut-off drain

(present FAS) and also consider a directional drill tunnel to take some flow directly to the
River Alyn.

Flintshire CC also asked that the study take account of the following:

1. Constructability: Cost effective solutions, that can be delivered efficiently through
collaboration with contractor, consultant and client

2. Effectiveness: demonstrating the benefits to be realised from a pragmatic, staged approach

3. Affordability: budget costings need to be realistic to avoid ‘ballooning’ costs during the
detailed design stage

4. Reliability: ensuring any new approach has no risk of failure.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “‘g?seu[r:gtcg



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Smart Flood Management Approach

The principle objectives of Smart Flood Management can be expressed, in simple terms, as follows:
1 optimise the flood flow capacity of the existing system
Rainfall falling

- directly over
~the town

catchments : v
upstream of Mold

- Capacity of DCWW combined.-
sewerage & drainage network and
~ overland flow pathways

1:13500 BRIT_GRD ((0SG836) - (120773 64935 ) (53" 10 31.1900° N, 3* 11 7.7550° W

k t t t {
Om  250m  $00m  750m 1250m
H  (<si2Bowtit OS Street View S1265W)

Figure 1: Integrated model for Mold Smart Flood Management System

2 attenuate, through attenuation storages, the peak flows
14
- Infrastructure
1.2 _—
capacity
1
)
: /
Eos
2 / \ —_
E 0.6 EXG
Q
0.4 / \
- / \
0 L] 1 13 1
04:48:00 06:00:00 07:12:00 08:24:00 09:36:00

Time

Figure 2: Assessing attenuation storage capacity for a Smart Flood Management system

W5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “‘gin:seulrt‘gg ‘



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

In Natural Flood Management, each sub-catchment that has either an ephemeral or permanent
channel can be enhanced with storage and attenuation features for ‘slowing the flow’. Smart FM
also utilises the principle of ‘slowing the flow’ by creating attenuation storage capacity which
complements and enhances the capacity of the existing system.

Smart FM comprises:

i) assessing the ‘optimised capacity’ of the waterway for flood prevention,

i) assessing peak flood flows derived from hydrological analysis,

iii) assessing attenuation storage(s) in various parts of a catchment,

iv) actively managing the attenuation storage(s) using control structure(s) to ensure the

peak flow rate through the waterway does not exceed its ‘optimised capacity’.

The components of a Smart FM system, optimised to work at the right time for the duration of a
flood event, results in the management of exceedance flows which, ordinarily, would exceed the
system capacity, thus preventing flooding with a significant increase in cost-effectiveness, compared
to NFM and traditional flood defence systems.

Attenuation storages provided closer to the at-risk area work more efficiently compared to distant
attenuation storage sites, i.e. those in the far reaches of the catchment will generally be less cost
effective and may require a careful evaluation of the relative benefits of passive versus active smart
control.

The potential for implementing Smart FM for alleviating flood risk to Mold is to be undertaken in
conjunction with examining whether relatively short lengths of upsized or dual culvert would make a
worthwhile difference to the overall sewerage & drainage system capacity.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “OQEEUEQQ



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Hydrology

The hydrology is primarily concerned with the rural catchments where storage and control have the
space and timescale to operate within Smart FM. FEH data indicates two main catchments, the
larger containing Gwernaffield and the smaller containing Gwernymynydd, please see Figure 3. A
much smaller catchment incorrectly assigned by FEH data to the River Alyn is seen as a rectangular
section by NW Mold, it is designated later as catchment ‘I’ or Fir Grove.

o yn-yTPnn dy

g New Brighton

Gwernaffield il I

Bryn-y-b
Pant-y-mwyn .

| —" Mynydd Tsq

I

Gwe; ‘I:tymynydd

Figure 3 Main catchments: Gwernaffield (green outline) and Gwernymynydd (red outline)

The two main catchments are somewhat different in respect to flows from modelled rainfall events.
ReFH software indicates that the Q100 flow of the smaller catchment Gwernymynydd is much larger
per unit area than the larger Gwernaffield catchment. Table 1 shows the ReFH catchment flows at
the confluence of the two natural catchment streams in Mold, and the ReFH flows to Brook St and
two potential storage areas.

Table 1: Catchments draining into Mold

Catchment Area | BFIHOST | Q100 | Q100 per unit area
(km?) (m%/s) | (I/s/ha)

Gwernaffield (to confluence in Mold) 415 | 0.71 2.2 5.3

Gwernymynydd (to confluence in Mold) | 1.71 | 0.59 1.8 10.5

Gwernaffield+Gwernymynydd at Brook St. 6.07 3.8

Gwernaffield at Marsh storage 3.21 1.8

Gwernymynydd at Ruthin Road storage 0.92 1.6

Fir Grove (catchment ‘I’) Rural 0.6 0.85 0.2 33

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “’gpseulr:gg



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

0OS mapping from 1888 indicates the route of the Gwernaffield catchment stream to have been on
the edge of urban Mold at that time. It flowed in an open channel towards the cricket ground and
was diverted around the cricket field, across the Ruthin Road/New Road, to alongside the area
currently known as Cae Bracty, finally on to Brook street and Gas Lane. The culverted route is very
similar to the original open channel route and during more extreme rainfalls the overland route will
follow the culverted route; albeit that raised road surfacings will mean considerable ponding.

Gwernymynydd catchment stream is shown in 1888 OS mapping to be open channel alongside the
Ruthin Road until Hendy Road. It now appears to have been diverted into a smaller catchment
stream to the south causing overland flows and piped flows to flow along parallel paths as the flows
approach Cae Bracty.

The design storm approach using ReFH relies heavily on the soil loss model. The model assumes the
catchments are initially fairly dry (Gwernaffield) and fairly wet (Gwernymynydd). Should the
antecedent wetness be much higher than expected from a series of closely spaced smaller storms
followed by the design storm, the Gwernaffield catchment, in particular, will have markedly
increased volumes for Q100 flows. The FEH statistical method used in the previous study by CES Ltd
gave higher values than ReFH, but the choice of good close donor stations is limited.

The Gwernaffield catchment is affected by mining drainage. The Milwr tunnel was driven below the
northern boundary of the catchment in 1948 (estimated) and passed out of the catchment by 1955
(estimated) to terminate at Cat Hole (now called Cadole) in 1957. The drainage tunnel intersects
several other east-west mineral vein mining tunnels. The effect is a reduction in the antecedent
wetness of the east portion of the catchment. This would dry the soils beyond what the ReFH model
estimated and may reduce peak flows. However, more extreme events that can raise the saturation
levels of the shallow soils quickly have a timescale which would be too rapid for the mining drainage
to effectively reduce peak flows.

The smaller Gwernaffield flow per unit area is partly explained by the soils of the catchment: having
a large area on limestone, where soils are thin and the drainage rapid into the limestone below, i.e. a
higher BFIHOST. In contrast, Gwernymynydd has a proportionately larger area of deeper soils over
less porous glacial till. It is also about 20% steeper according to the DPSBAR catchment descriptor
and has more urbanisation per unit area. These combined effects make Gwernymynydd a flashier
catchment than Gwernaffield.

Volumes from Q100 design storms are approximately 48,500 m? (58,300 m?® with climate change
allowance) and 87,200 m® (104,700 m? with climate change allowance) from Gwernymynydd and
Gwernaffield catchments, respectively.

Total Q100 flows entering Mold in the Cae Bracty catchment are uncertain due to smaller
catchment routes and urban diversions both through culverts and overland. A suitable estimate is
found by adding Table 1 values for the combined Gwernaffield / Gwernymynydd catchments with Fir
Grove (rural plus urban) and the uncertain Gwernymynydd B catchment. The Q100 value for the
combined catchments without critical storm duration analysis is 3.8 m3/s at upper Brook St.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “OQFSEUEQQ



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Identification of subcatchments

Watershed software, GlobalMapper was used to compare smaller subcatchments with OS mapping.
Generally OS mapping defines and maps permanent streams whereas GlobalMapper defines flow
routes based on the underlying topography, a combination of LiDAR and OS 50 data in this case. If
too fine a subdivision of catchments is carried out, the results can be physically meaningless as
channels are not present. The presence of an ephemeral but dry channel is an important indicator of
long return period flows, dependent on soil and rock types. Figure 4 shows the GlobalMapper
generated streams and subcatchments using a 0.1km? stream catchment generation area.

X

"?\1\

. -
Gwernaffield % I (Fir Grove) X‘

3

Gwernaffield subcatchments

Atol

[ .

Ruthin Road &%

Gwernymynydd subcatchments |,

Figure 4: GlobalMapper generated catchments

Gwernaffield catchments

Travelling upstream, the stream from the confluence in central Mold passes through Mold urbanised
subcatchments H and G before exiting at Queens Park where it has been channelled in a straight line
through the field. It is shown by OS mapping to stop well before the ravine and it presumably
becomes ephemeral. Its dry channel is clear from LiDAR and geological maps as it extends to just
south of Gwernaffield. The 10m deep ravine in catchment B (Figure 4) is likely to be a paleochannel
but it is also an indication that the flow network for extreme events has the ability to generate large
flows rapidly. Earlier OS mappings show this ravine stream to be permanent but land use changes
and/or water abstraction may have altered flows.

The catchment beyond the ravine (NGR 321535 364558) has an area of 1.6km? that can, according to
ReFH, generate a Q100 flow of 1.1 m3/s and a Q100 volume of about 10,000 m3, making the ravine
an area of interest for attenuation storage.

Streams generated as drainage routes in catchments C, E and F are present in OS mapping but
appear to be culverted or piped in parts of their routes. Flows from catchments C, D and the
unlettered catchment south of D could be captured in the marsh area (NGR 322456 364032). This
area is currently felled woodland and is biologically degraded. It is an excellent location for bunded

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “’g’ncglr:gg ‘



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

storage and could be revitalised as an ecologically valuable bog. Close by on the edge of urban Mold
by Queens Park is a field through which the main stream flows from 90% of the catchment area. It
too has an excellent bunded storage potential.

Catchment ‘I’ or Fir Grove, about 0.6 km? rural and another 0.25 km? in urban Mold, see Figure 4,
enters Mold through Fir Grove and passes into a low spot flowing south past the Mold Community
Hospital. The catchment has a high BFIHOST and from its small area is unable to generate a
permanent stream channel. The hospital channel has probably been deepened and is mapped as
permanent. Unfortunately, the ephemeral stream route was urbanised many years ago by Fir Grove.
This area behind Fir Grove housing in the field is an area of saturation excess overland flow where
flows converge during wet periods and emerge from the ground. They may appear as an overland
flow flash flood but most of the flow is probably from below ground. At some stage a pipe was laid
for some distance under the shallow valley floor of the catchment. This now carries flows direct to
the Mold Community Hospital channel and on in to central Mold. Ditching alongside Maes Garmon
Lane may be connected to this artificial route. Overall, the pipe and ditching have added a
significant Q100 flow to central Mold where once the flow would have been minimal and slow to
react. Note that catchment ‘I’ is designated as Gwernaffield (Catchment B) in previous reports by
CES Ltd.

Q100 flows from catchment ‘I’ in total (rural and urban) are suggested by ReFH scaling to be about
0.4 m3/s. Interception of this flow would require more effort than the other catchments. It can be
achieved by using a simple bund, or as suggested in a previous FCA by CES Ltd using a cutoff culvert,
however flows could be bypassed underneath by saturated groundwater. This may leave about
0.2m3/s, during Q100 flows, entering Mold north of Cae Bracty.

Gwernymynydd catchments

Gwernymynydd’s subcatchment ‘A’, Figure 4 is the main catchment. It is piped in urban
Gwernymynydd and reappears following the A494 until culverted again just before the A494 bypass
roundabout along a cut-off section of road. It reappears in open channel along the Ruthin road and
becomes culverted again entering urban Mold. The stream channel is very variable in width having
been trained in places but also constrained by materials dumped into the stream channel.

Gwernymynydd’s subcatchment ‘B’ is mainly an urban catchment. OS 1888 mapping shows it to be
ditched and directly connected to the channel at Cae Bracty. However, it is now culverted except
south of Highfield Villas and at some stage Gwernymynydd’s catchment ‘A’ pipe was diverted into it
from near Hendy Road. The upper drainage route may have been altered by the Mold bypass route.
Its estimated area is 0.43 km? though its contribution to flow requires more investigation and a
preliminary estimate of Q100 flow is about 0.3m3/s. This flow is not included in Table 1 flows due to
the uncertainty of catchment routing.

Cae Bracty urban subcatchment

Cae Bracty of about 2500m? in area to the 108.5m contour using 2m resolution LiDAR is located in a
small depression embedded in a larger catchment of about 0.15 km? in area, see Figure 5, which
originally, seen on 1888 OS Maps, drained directly into the ditched open channel stream. This larger
catchment, here designated Cae Bracty, will in storm conditions overwhelm local drainage and

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “OQFSEUEQQ



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

attempt to re-engage with the original drainage route along the line of the culvert above it, but
subject to deviation by subsequent urbanisation. The Cae Bracty catchment falls towards the culvert
line more steeply from the SW, mean gradient 0.033, than from the NE, mean gradient 0.014. Only
part of the larger Cae Bracty catchment, perhaps 20%, flows towards the Cae Bracty depression in
storm conditions. However this area, along with the culvert flowing at full capacity, is more than
sufficient to flood Cae Bracty in storm conditions.

| Original stream route —
later ditched /straightened
and then culverted

Figure 5: Cae Bracty catchment

W5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “‘gtn:seulrt‘gg ‘



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Infrastructure improvements

The residential and commercial properties in Mold are at risk of flooding from the inflows from the
upstream catchments as well as the rainfall falling directly over the town. The drainage network in
Mold consists of streams entering the town from upper catchments passing into culverts and being
joined by surface water drainage and also a (legally) separate Dwr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW)
combined sewerage & drainage network. The previous study mentions of modelling some 15km of
surface water drainage network and 28km of combined sewerage & drainage system.

The previous modelling exercise updated and constructed a detailed 1D/2D model of River Alyn and
the preferred alignment of the proposed cut-off channel. Some modelling of the flooding
mechanism in the town was undertaken.

The previous modelling exercise did not appear to consider the effect of possible sewerage &
drainage flow contributions from elsewhere such as Gwernymynydd and possibly Buckley. Although
that exercise evaluated options of adding storage to the sewerage & drainage system as well as
creating a wetland, it did not evaluate any upgrades to the sewerage & drainage system that has
developed independently over time, such as the removal of adversely sloped pipes and bottlenecks
in the system. Sewerage & drainage improvements can augment the capacity of the system and any
improvement to the capacity of the sewerage & drainage system should result in a reduction in the
quantity of required offline or online storage. Further, the systems were modelled in isolation. The
previous flood models are a mixture of MicroDrainage (pipes, channels but seems to be used mainly
for hydrology) ESTRY (fluvial, urban drainage), ISIS (fluvial) and TUFLOW (urban surface) models.

The available modelling data provided by FCC shows some network data, see Figure 6.

-

4 =
j;/ Lf AN
= i s 4 N
e \ Aﬁ &(/« /'\/ v% ¥

Figure 6: Missing information and network issues

Of the above, the first dataset could only be used for the network modelling due to missing
information in the other datasets. Additionally, no information on the pumping station at Cae Bracty
could be found. Depending on the level of confidence and detail required at any subsequent
detailed design stage, such information may be useful or indeed necessary.

This dataset has been used together with the LiDAR data in this study to build, using MIKE Urban
software by DHI, a single integrated model comprising a 2D surface water flood model that is linked
to both the 1D surface water network with catchment flows as boundary conditions and the 1D

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “OQEGU[:QQ



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

sewerage & drainage network, see Figure 7. The rainfall has been applied directly on to the 2D
surface model. The MIKE Urban software has the capability to model catchment flows in 2D, connect
the flows to either the 1D river network or both the 1D river network and the 1D sewerage &
drainage network. Flows enter from a 2D surface to the 1D networks by draining from the 2D
surface, or conversely spill onto the 2D surface from the 1D network and generate flooding. This
enables alterations in one part of the system to directly interact with the other elements, giving a
better picture of the overall system. Thus, it provides a better configuration representing the flood
mechanism.

The newly built model for Mold is substantially different to the previous model which focused on the
cut-off channel and the River Alyn. The new model effectively models the potential interventions in
the catchment as well as in the urban areas.

2 MIKE URBAN - EAWORK\Mold\MUSep: = o X
Fle ESt MOUSE Simuletion Mo
NeEPesERel MOUSE | MOUSE Menoe v v e 2UAE NSUREE L
QYOPe+ HUDEL r 3 LA MrNEREARYE B ®0dadE B enc@REEQH Y 8
o —— ¥
! IS 2 mup (Base] bl o
o
TST atndar o Sebection Time. I~ Discharge
Ssies || I ‘ o ]
i, 84 Odon-1169104 881 A | i
- I
10011 98307303 A 10 f »
e 158417 4544 L
5[ otjen-1109527 488 A 08 2
O1-an-11 00831004 | =
@ Collection System N Lk LY * ‘
f e Sijan-11 00847381 A& . |
X 0 |oientiosasareA 4
2 MOUSE Manholes T |01Jan110110085T A |
. 7 e 92
B MOUSE Basing B |
e 7
v < izl
B MOUSE Soskaways
®
B MOUSE Storage Nod 2l
B MOUSE Links

11~

MOUSE Weirs

L ]
B MOUSE Orfices MOUSE Longitudinal Profie

@
2 MOUSE Curb Indets

,f’i]n

I
|
1
i
|
1
i
1

|
i L 1 |
’ 0 50 100 150 200 20 200 350 400 450 500 550 600 650 70 750 800 850 900 [m)
ShatiD 007 006 002 004 005 023 025 50 n1a| 052 &3] 0ds 056 067 | 068 | 059 | w60 sl
inverilevel | || 11001 | 10891 10832 10820 10868 10782 10670 10656[ 70666 || 10631 | 10599 |10574 10525 | 10406 | 10281 I
ik Diameter 08000 08250 08000 09500
C 64132 67676 45287 9T I 183957 43008 8954 100986 29423 4029 [33759] 51998 | 40836 |
07 o6 »03 o4 ©23 J025050 S1b | 052 055 056 | 067 | 58 | o638 | w60
172 087 037 052 050 188, 02 [ 106 031 085 | 122 | 382 | 241 2

NUM

Figure 7: MIKE Urban model setup

The existing urban drainage was investigated to explore potential improvements that could be made
to convey significantly more flows; such as removing bottlenecks and adding capacity over short
stretches of the network. Investigations identified some restrictions and bottlenecks in the system
near Cae Bracty. The works to remove these restrictions and bottlenecks would be limited to the
sections where additional capacity can be achieved without a need to disturb most of the network as
shown in Figure 8.

By removing some restrictions and bottlenecks and allowing some overland flow to occur in the
integrated model, see Figure 9, it is estimated that a throughput of some 1.4 cumecs could be
achievable from Cae Bracty onwards.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “OGter“CO

consultants



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Rooa 2Nt 33 _— 0.8m dia pipes -

.23
NP

\@_3}
\ﬁmoeg.:L‘ - /,—*"

¥ N6k 08 ue s

095 vuue'is
— Node_11
Soone. b 0. - " Nowe_22
TR e 095 0 ) 1099 Vi Sl e 8 095 i toum oo
: 2 ¢
|
52 ———— 1mx0.8mculverts ——
0.8 dia /~45m length
laid at negative slope
|
|
Node_01 |
Rose.Givcdo 03 4 o
= lo
o ST
T voe 08Nade_07
%’k\n,,,_ 08
\\_)‘g@;“immoe_os
095 w0
—— Nede_11
095 oot Nowe_22
SR g ) 999 VAL 095 s 0

Figure 8: Potential locations for infrastructure improvements

57 MOUSE Longitudinal Profile
File Zoom Format Export

MOU:
) Ky
Ry
Link ¥
514 e 08 oiaee fm
\\-\ Node_10
" e

B3 MOUSE Longitudinl Profie

File Zoom Format Export

20 0 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200 230 240 260 280 300
ShaftiD [ [--f-nnNode_03[Node_04]....].] Node 07 | Node 08  |Node_09|Node_10
nvertievel | || 10648 | 10635 [...].| 10622 | 105.99 | 10574 | 10525

Figure 9: Model output showing reduction in max flood depth post network improvements

More bottlenecks were also noticed in parts of the town upstream of Cae Bracty, see Figure 10. It
needs to be noted that adverse falls, although troublesome from a siltation point of view are not
necessarily a bad thing for the network as they can act to hold back (attenuate) flows.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “ﬁ:ater*co

consultants



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Figure 10: Negative slopes elsewhere in the sewerage & drainage network

However, it was found that removal of the restrictions and bottlenecks in the system near Cae
Bracty only marginally alleviates the flooding to the properties, see Figure 11.

030m

000m

Figure 11: Max flood extents near Cae Bracty comparison for 100CC event

The limited benefit can be attributed to the topographic depression in which Cae Bracty is located.
(see earlier Hydrology section). Changes to the drainage at Cae Bracty, such as a separate pipe from
the lowest level at Cae Bracty or actively managing the flows using the pumping station, appear to
be needed.

W5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “‘g’ncglr:gg n



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Further investigations were undertaken to identify locations of flooding from Gwernaffield as shown
in see Figure 12, Gwernymynydd and Fir Grove catchments separately. This exercise identified that
flows from all the catchments need to be managed to alleviate flooding to Mold.

100m

I 4 n n 4 n y

om 100m 200m 300m

Figure 12: Max flood extents from Gwernaffield flows only for 100CC event

There is a significant drainage constraint at Cae Bracty where two 850 mm drains and one 600mm
join together, but the combined outlet is still only 800 mm diameter. The cost of a new dual pipeline
will be high, but the benefits to the system and to Cae Bracty in particular will be significant. The
practicality of installing a new pipeline down Brook Street and crossing the Wrexham Road into Gas
Lane should be investigated. Hydraulically a new 600mm should suffice, but if space permits a new
800mm should be installed so that the existing one can be refurbished and potential blockage and
flow constraints due to service crossings can be investigated and rectified.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “’g?seulr:gg



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Upstream attenuation storages for Smart FM

Attenuation storage volumes

The flow rate which could be safely conveyed past a given location of interest provides the context
for calculating the required upstream storage volume for alleviating flood risk at a specific
downstream location. At Cae Bracty, it has been assumed that a flow rate of 1.4 m3/s can be safely
conveyed without overland flow which can increase to 2 m3/s by allowing shallow flooding of the
road. It was also noted that for the network upstream of Cae Bracty to remain flood free, further
flow restrictions are required on the peak flow entering the drainage system. The required storage
volumes in the catchments with these considerations have been estimated as given in Table 2 below.

Table 2: required attenuation storage volumes for individual catchments

100yr+CC peak flow Peak flow rate Required attenuation
Catchment rate (m*/s) after SFM storage volume
(m?/s) (m?)
Gwernaffield 2.2 0.5 32,800
Gwernymynydd 1.8 0.5 18,600

A higher level of attenuation in one of the catchments may mean a lower level of attenuation could
be provided in the other. It is immediately apparent however that these storage areas would
require construction and ongoing monitoring under the Reservoirs Act. This is discussed further in
later sections.

Storage sites

Exploration of potential attenuation storage sites has been undertaken using topographic and land
use data. Preference has been given to natural topographical depressions to achieve attenuation
storage with minimal requirement of structures. Particular attention has been given to the existing
land use to minimise potential difficulties involved in securing land. No landowner engagement has
been undertaken at this stage, given the sensitivity of the Mold Flood Alleviation scheme.

One of the benefits of Smart FM is that the controls for the usage of the potential attenuation
storage areas can be configured in such a way that the land is flooded for only a short period, so that
the existing land use is not significantly affected. Any proposed structures, including the control
structures will need to be sited in such a way as not to interfere with the existing land use activities.

Consideration should also be given, at the detailed design stage, to maximising the benefit by
possible modifications to the proposed schemes to achieve additional benefits, such as biodiversity,
social and environmental health and wellbeing, which may unlock additional funding for the scheme.

For the Gwernaffield catchment, the ravine in the upper catchment was initially identified as a
possible suitable site. However, further identified sites, at the marsh and Queens Park field, in the
lower catchment are preferred over the ravine due to their further downstream location and
therefore their ability to attenuate flows from a larger portion of the catchment.

An excellent location for the Gwernymynydd catchment attenuation exists alongside the Ruthin
Road Roundabout NGR 323250 364850) to catch a significant flow from the catchment, as 50% of
the catchment drains through that point. Part of the land is not in productive use, is visually poor

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “‘g?seu[r:gtcg



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

and would provide a high-profile site to demonstrate positive action is being taken in relation to
flood risk reduction.

Moving down the catchment to find further attenuation storage and to intercept more of the flow is
hindered by a more diffused flow path and entry into urban Mold. However, as this catchment is
flashy and the single storage site only covers 50% of the total catchment area, it is considered
important to investigate storage options in the urbanised Gwernymynydd ‘A’ catchment and in
urbanised Gwernymynydd catchment ‘B’.

Key information about the attenuation storage areas is presented in Table 3 and figures ( Figure 13
to Figure 15) below.

Table 3: Salient details of the identified attenuation storage areas

Name of the Attenuation Storage Area
Marsh Queens Park Ruthin Road Roundabout

Area 20,720 sgm 29,360 sgm 22,750 sgm
Bund height / level 4m /121.0 mAOD | 2m/116.0 mAOD 2m/ 144.0 mAOD
Bottom level 117.0 m 114.0 m 142.0 m
Max water depth 35m 1.5m 1.5m
Max WL 120.5 mAOD 115.5 mAOD 143.5 mAOD
Max storage volume 26,060 m3/s 39,610 m3/s 15,095 m3/s
Required attenuation 32,800 m? 18,600 m3
storage volume (from
Table 2)
Makx fill surface area 20,420 sgqm 27,930 sgm 11,300 sgm
Side slopes 1:3 1:3 1:3
Clearance NA 3 m from properties | 3 m from road

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “OQEEUEQQ




Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Figure 13: Marsh attenuation storage area

W5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “‘giﬂ:glrt‘gg n



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Figure 14: Queens Park attenuation storage area

W5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “‘gin:seulrt‘gg n



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Figure 15: Ruthin Road attenuation storage area

W5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “.g‘nbseulrt\g(tjs n



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Catchment ‘I, Fir Grove, could be problematic for active storm storage. A possible solution is a deep
storage tank near Fir Grove with pumping or a gravity flow to the River Alyn catchment a little
further north. This would take in about 70% of the catchment area, the remaining being in urban
Mold.

The assessment confirms a healthy mix of potentially developable attenuation storage areas to
alleviate flood risk to Mold.

These attenuation storage areas can be developed in a way that also provides benefits of Natural
Flood Management whilst being ‘smart’. The storages will be activated only for short periods of few
hours to ‘catch the peak’ and therefore the land will still be available for their existing land-use.

These attenuation storages can capture and attenuate a significant amount of peak flood volume
previously planned to be intercepted by the present FAS proposed cut-off drain. The works would
need some significant earthworks but appear entirely feasible and very cost effective.

Smart FM implementation

Appendix A shows a chart utilising the full Smart FM on the three Gwernaffield potential storages
and one Gwernymynydd storage. In this arrangement, the Fir Grove flows are exported to the River
Alyn.

Gwernaffield catchment

The Gwernaffield catchment is the largest catchment and under certain conditions has the potential
for much higher flows than expected. It is therefore important that more than one storage site be
considered. If the upstream ravine storage is suitable it would have a set of activated gates and a
series of storage bunds. For control simplicity all gates in a storage site would activate from a single
command and not act independently. A level sensor on the lower bunded store and a flow outlet
gauge would determine the input and output conditions of the system. Similar considerations apply
to the downstream storages of the Marsh and Queens Park. Depending on further investigations, a
transfer function (TF) model of each storage can pass data so that the three models run in a chain
and each set of storage gates can operate independently. If it is found that one TF model can be
used for the whole catchment and the gates can be controlled in unison then the simpler solution
would be implemented.

As a rainstorm arrives over the combined catchment, three rain gauges would send data combined
to a representative value to the input of the TF model. The model once calibrated would be
operating in forecast mode and the storage gates would be throttled down to collect water close to
the peak of the storm. Given a suitable clear forecast by the TF model rain gauge input, the stored
water would be released later at a rate suitable for the capacity of Mold’s urban drainage culverts.

Loss from the Milwr tunnel would be incorporated in the general TF model without a separate
investigation.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “‘g?seu[r:gtcg



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Gwernymynydd catchment

The storage would have multiple gates and in this instance they would be controlled separately by
commands from the TF model forecast, such that the lowest pond gets filled first. A level sensor and
flow sensor outlet gauge determine the operating conditions for input to the TF model. This
catchment is small and may have short response time. If the forecast lead time using the TF model is
too short it could operate on a simpler level controlled storage — this option would be investigated
during initial TF calibration and site instrumentation.

Catchment ‘I, Fir Grove

Catchment ‘I, Fir Grove, would require a level sensor for pump activation and could essentially be
passive, though flows should be investigated during the whole catchment calibration period. As long
as flows were exported out of the catchment and into the River Alyn catchment, it can act
independently.

Rainfall data

Rainfall data for the catchment can be measured using tipping bucket rain (TBR) gauges when a
suitable site is available or by using piezoelectric rain gauges if the site is prone to leaf fall and
debris. TBR gauges are often used in pairs to increase data reliability and reduce maintenance visits.
Three pairs of TBR gauges or three piezoelectric gauges is the minimum number needed to cover all
catchments. The rainfalls across the catchments are similar; both have a SAAR of about 900mm, a
modest annual rainfall total.

Cae Bracty

Cae Bracty, located in a natural topographic depression is at risk of frequent flooding from the rain
falling directly over the town. It is one of the most problematic areas at risk of flooding in Mold. The
suggestion has been made that it may be more cost effective to demolish these properties and
rebuild them at a higher level. However, this study will focus on possible ways of saving the
properties, while reducing flood risk to a more tolerable level.

Upstream Interventions

Storage on the Gwernaffield and Gwernymynydd catchments, as well as diversion of Fir Grove water
has the potential to reduce flows to allow excess Cae Bracty water into the culvert. This may be a
long term solution, but it appears likely that in the short term this area can be removed from
significant flood risk in a cost-effective manner more locally.

Local overland flow diversions

There does not appear to be much scope for urban overland flow diversions, particularly along
highways from the steeper SW direction (Bryn Coch direction) Although this could route incoming
water around the Cae Bracty depression it might simply shift the problem elsewhere.

Infrastructure improvements

In addition to possible pipe network infrastructure improvements discussed previously; if the ‘dam’
caused by the raised road levels along Brook street and at the Wrexham Road off the Cae Bracty
depression can be ‘bypassed’ by laying a pipe beneath (that only operates in storm conditions), the
current storage will be far more effective.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “‘g?seu[r:gtcg



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Improving the current storage

Utilising the existing storage but with Smart FM to stop the storage filling too early, from minor
storms before a major storm, has its merits. If the bottleneck can be opened by other
improvements, as described, then Smart FM peak flow lopping can be used to optimise the use of
the existing storage.

Storage could be increased (beyond the current 40m3 tank capacity) by installing additional tanks in
the nearby playing fields. This would require further investigation of the potential volumes that can
accumulate in the Cae Bracty depression during storm conditions. Increased storage provision is
likely to require pumping — but this could be restricted to just extreme events and only for the
duration of peak flow lopping.

Individual property flood protection

Flood proofing two or three of the lower level properties would increase above ground storage.
Smart FM system operating on culvert/storage tank levels would inform residents (by phone. text or
email to move vehicles and install their doorway flood defences in good time.

Figure 16: Pumping station at Cae Bracty

Exploration of green infrastructure in the town may also help alleviate some of the flood risk whilst
providing additional social and environmental benefits. Such measures are also likely to help unlock
additional funding.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “’g?seulr:gg



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Catchment diversions

It is understood that wider scale modelling of the River Alyn undertaken by NRW has confirmed that
there is capacity in the River Alyn to receive additional flow.

Therefore, although substantial attenuation storage options in the upper catchments seem
achievable, any residual flows to ensure the required standard of protection to the properties and
businesses in Mold may be diverted to the River Alyn. This can be achieved by either constructing a
diversion channel/culvert or a directional drill diversion tunnel or a combination of a channel and a
tunnel as shown in Figure 17.

In engineering hydrology, cut-off channels are well known to be an excellent method of diverting or
capturing unexpected flows during more extreme events. Cut-off channels have less potential for
blockages compared to culverts, however, they are seen by landowners as intrusive. Less intrusive
culverts still require cut and cover construction but directional drill tunnels are a low intrusion
option.

The advantage of adding flood storage to the catchments’ diversion plan is flexibility. Diversion
channels, culverts or tunnels can be substantially smaller and shorter. The length of diversion could
be as minimal as capturing Fir Grove flows, an intermediate length capturing Gwernaffield and Fir
Grove or the original full length capturing all three catchments but carrying smaller flows.

250m 375m

Figure 17: Diversion options for any residual flood flows

Although all diversions discussed drain north to the River Alyn upstream of Mold, there is scope for
diversions south of Mold to the River Alyn for the Gwernymynydd catchment in association with
attenuation storage at Ruthin Road. An overview of all the potential attenuation storages and
diversions for alleviating flood risk to Mold is presented in Figure 18

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “OBter"CO

consultants



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Pantymwyn

o9 YRWYDDGRUG/ ¢
""" 'MOLDS £

el

Figure 18: Overview of all the potential attenuation storages and diversions

These options have not been explored ‘on the ground’ as landowner contact would be needed for
this but some of the proposed interventions are along the route of the cut-off drain proposed in the
present FAS. Nonetheless, land use and mapping has been reviewed and there does appear to be
merit in looking further at these options.

However, it has been concluded that a combination of various measures will provide a sound
balance here. Keeping storage volumes below 10,000 m3 will reduce both construction cost and
ongoing supervisory costs as the storage areas will not fall under the Reservoirs Act. Diverting flow
to the River Alyn will take volume out of the Gwernaffield flood flow and installing an additional
drain in the urban area from Cae Bracty to Gas lane will reduce flood risk there. This overall
methodology is presented on the flow diagram and ‘Opportunity Map’ included as an appendix to
this report.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “’g?seulr:gg



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Joint working, funding and additional benefits

Joint working with the stakeholders is an important tenet of the SFM / NFM approach. A
collaborative process not only identifies the key stakeholders, but also provides vital support and
information necessary for the success of a flood scheme. An additional benefit of the collaborative
process is that it may identify additional funding sources by matching the plans and objectives of the
key stakeholders with those of the potential options for a flood scheme.

Flintshire County Council and DCWW are the key relevant stakeholders keen to solve flooding issues
in Mold. Therefore, it is suggested that this Smart Flood Management feasibility study be used to
initiate a FCC-DCWW partnership; and then additional stakeholders can be approached for their
involvement and support.

With the uncertainties associated with any hydrological assessment compounded by the impact of
climate change, there is a clear need to add a factor of safety. The attenuation storage areas can be
sized to accommodate more extreme exceedance events. Green infrastructure measures (hedge and
tree planting in particular) - both around the storage areas and in the catchment generally - should
be explored to provide further flood risk reduction benefits to counter uncertainty. Furthermore,
Green Infrastructure will further enhance the environment by improving water quality, air quality,
biodiversity and other benefits.

The above methodology focusses on solutions and outcomes. Refining and documenting the
process will make it readily transferrable to other catchments.

The cascade storage at the roundabout could be landscaped to be visually attractive and at the very
least an improvement on the tip scene that presently greets visitors to Mold. At best it could be
iconic.

Social gains will be obtained from dealing with the depressing frequency of flooding at Cae Bracty
and some properties could be brought back into use.

Biodiversity gains should be possible at the marsh area which is presently almost derelict

Listening and engaging with landowners, as opposed to imposing something on them they disagree
with, will bring about enthusiasm and support and ensure the project is delivered quickly and cost
effectively.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “OQEEU[:QQ



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Conclusions

This study has explored feasibility of Smart FM alternatives to the cut-off flood relief channel
proposed in the earlier FAS. Building on previous data, hydraulic models, and local knowledge of the
catchments the exploratory work undertaken has identified a number of Smart FM options available
to alleviate flood risk issues in Mold, with the most promising ideas being as follows:

1).There is a significant drainage constraint at Cae Bracty where two 850 mm drains and one 600mm
join together, but the combined outlet is still only 800 mm diameter. The cost of a new dual pipeline
will be high, but the benefits to the system and to Cae Bracty in particular will be significant. The
practicality of installing a new pipeline down Brook Street and crossing the Wrexham Road into Gas
Lane should be investigated.

2).In the meantime the risk to the properties in Cae Bracty appears unreasonable and a short term
remedy which will be compatible with (1) above to provide greater long term protection will be to
install Individual Property Flood Protection at the entrances to the lower lying properties and install
new Smart controls to the storage tank and pump back arrangement. In the event that item (1)
above proves to be too costly another possible solution at Cae Bracty will be to install additional
pumped storage beneath the nearby playing fields.

3).Two flood attenuation areas have been identified as being viable with Smart FM controls to make
the storage volumes useful. It should be highlighted that these would need to be significantly larger
storages if Smart FM is not used. Flows from the Gwernymynydd area can be attenuated at the
Ruthin Road Roundabout while the Gwernaffield flows can be attenuated at a ‘marsh area’ upstream
of Queens Park. There is also a valuable attenuation potential on the edge of Queens Park, but this
could be within the envelope of future urban development. The imperative there will be to ensure
flood attenuation forma part of any development proposal. A small scheme also needs to be
developed at Fir Grove.

4).Due the nature of the soils in the Gwernaffield catchment, flows could be higher than predicted
by current ReFH software. Some caution and contingency is therefore warranted and the potential
for diverting flow directly to the River Alyn should be investigated with landowners. By not having to
collect from Gwernymynydd the ditch could be smaller and routed to avoid the Alwen Aqueduct
(which was an impediment to the orginal scheme).

Overall the conclusion has been reached that a combination of interventions will provide the best
and most cost effective solution as shown in the appended flow diagram. Subject to detailed
modelling, design and early stakeholder engagement this approach should significantly outperform
the cut-off channel proposed in the current FAS on constructability, affordability, reliability and
sustainability criteria and bring the schem back within the original budget.

The appended ‘Opportunity Map’ is supplemented on the next page by an Action Plan, with broad
cost estimates below. Recommended strategic next actions then conclude the report.

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “OQFSEUEQQ



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Action plan and budget costings

Stage | Description Budget est.

1 Installation of individual property flood protection at Cae Bracty,
together with implementing Smart system to control tank storage and | £200 k
pump back operation

2 Engage with landowners; prepare full working details of storage
alongside Gwernymynydd / Wrexham Rd roundabout; implement a | £1000 k
Smart FM scheme; and allow for ongoing maintenance

3 Engage with landowners; prepare full working details of storage in the
marsh area upstream of Queens Park; implement a Smart FM scheme; | £700 k
and allow for ongoing maintenance

4 Engage with landowners; prepare full working details of diversion

ditch and associated culverts and install to NRW requirements £1100k

5 Engage with landowners; prepare full working details of storage in the
area upstream of Fir Grove; implement a Smart FM scheme; and allow | £400 k
for ongoing maintenance

6 Investigate and engage with DCWW and construct new 800mm
diameter pipeline from Cae Bracty to Gas Lane (including directional
drill under Wrexham Road). Alternatively install additional tank
storage beneath playing fields opposite Cae Bracty.

£1600 k

7 Engage with landowners; prepare full working details of storage
alongside Mold Bypass to counteract climate change flow increases; | £500 k
implement a Smart FM scheme; and allow for ongoing maintenance

8 Ensure that any future planning application for the land alongside
Queens Park takes account of the valuable flood attenuation storage nil
opportunities that exist (funded under Section 106 by developer).

Broad budget total £5.5
million

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “‘g?seu[r:gtcg



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Recommended Strategic Next Actions

1. Submit a copy of this report to Welsh Government to confirm the Smart FM approach is
acceptable in principle; and that grant funding on the basis of a budget of £5.5 million is
available. Agree a phased delivery programme.

2. Undertake a topographical survey of Cae Bracty, obtaining threshold levels and details of
property drainage. Obtain prices for supplying and installing Individual property flood
protection (IPFP) to affected properties (including non-return valves on drains and
protection to air bricks).

3. Liaise with DCWW and obtain details of the existing drainage arrangement in the vicinity of
the existing Cae Bracty storage tank and the pump back system. Prepare details of a (Smart)
automated system that makes most use of the existing storage in conjunction with IPFP.
Investigate whether DCWW might contribute to the cost of these works.

4. Undertake a topographical survey of Brook Street / Wrexham Road / Gas Lane together with
existing drainage and all utility apparatus. Prepare a scheme to install a new drain to carry
flood water from Cae Bracty to Gas Lane. Undertake a modelling assessment downstream
to ensure no undue adverse impact of passing forward flood water flows. Obtain tenders for
the works.

5. Engage with landowners, undertake topo and ecology surveys and develop schemes for
Smart FM attenuation (in sufficient detail to obtain cost estimates) at three locations:

e Gwernymynydd/Wrexham Rd roundabout
e Marsh area upstream of Queens Park
e Edge of the Fir Grove Estate

6. Engage with landowners and investigate the viability of a ditch (similar route, but smaller in
size that the original FAS and avoiding Alwen Aqueduct) to the River Alyn; to divert water
from the Gwernaffield catchment and improve the standard of flood protection.

7. Ensure that any future planning application for the land alongside Queens Park takes
account of the valuable flood attenuation storage opportunities that exist. Work with
developers under a Section 106 Agreement to obtain some degree of ‘betterment’, i.e.
storage volume over and above the standard greenfield run off associated with any
development

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM “OQEEU[:QQ



Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme Smart FM feasibility study

Milwr tunnel drainage

- Afon Alun catchment

Cat. I’ 0.6km?
Fir Grove
storage

Gwernaffield rural catchment, 3.8km?

Ravine -
storage ""

(et mocer |

Microprocessor

Mold urban catchments

Cae Bracty

Queens
Park
storage

29 abed

N

Gwernymynydd cat. ‘B’

Afon Alun

' Levelgauge
Cut-off road > Eaue
£
storage ® Active gate
Transfer function 2 model
Flow gauge
Gwernymynydd ‘A’ rural cat., 0.9km?

“’ aterco

w5037-170320-Mold FAS -Smart FM consultants



€9 abed

“OS'CEPCO

consultants

Gwernaffield New ditch
Catchment

s

Mold Smart FM
2 Flow Diagram

Fir Grove
attenuation

/

Marsh area
attenuation

Ruthin Road Urban Moliﬁ

roundabout contibution

attenuation

9770 cum

CAE BRACTY

New pipeline

Gwernymynydd
Catchment

e

Mold bypass
attenuation

G Peak flow in m3/s with CCA



oaterco Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme

consultants

Smart Flood Management — Opportunity Map

From Pos: 322101286, 364203.904 ToPos: 323060.720, 365100.233

Fir Grovg

250m 00w T0m 1000 250m  13%m

And storm pumping station

to divert flow alongside Maes Garmon Lane with any future development

Proposed new ditch profile — with localised culverts Queens Park — attenuation ° Fir Grove — proposed attenuation

Cae Bracty — proposed individual

directly to River Alyn property flood protection and

\
T e———

o addition of Smart controls to
Rhyd-y-goleu

existing storage tank and pump.

Gwernaffi - catchmenti
catchmes o 2

Principle of
Smart Flood Management

—Before attenuation storage
—After attenuation storage

9 abed

Time

Marsh Area — proposed attenuation
Volume <10,000 m3

Brook St.to Gas Lane storm relief
6 proposed new pipeline parallel
with existing 900 mm storm drain

ymynydd 3
nt inflow

vb\x,“ -
B>

' NYDDGRUG/ 4% A
Aerial image Concept plan of cascades - MOLD / .
: [N N

Gwernymynydd / Ruthin Road roundabout
proposed attenuation in 4 cascade pools
Volume <10,000 m3

Land alongside Mold bypass
With potential for additional
attenuation areas to offset

Proposed Order of
Implementation

climate change.



Agenda Iltem 6

Sir y Fflint
"E!m!o%!z.ire

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Tuesday 12 December, 2017
Report Subject Council Plan 2017/18 - Mid year monitoring
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Planning and Public Protection

Cabinet Member for Streetscene and Countryside

Report Author Chief Officer (Planning and Environment)

Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation)

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council Plan 2017/23 was adopted by the Council in September 2017. This
report presents the mid-year monitoring of progress for the Council Plan priority
‘Green Council’ relevant to the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

Flintshire is a high performing Council as evidenced in previous Council
(Improvement) Plan monitoring reports as well as in the Council’'s Annual
Performance Reports. This first monitoring report for the 2017/18 Council Plan is a
positive report, with 88% of activities being assessed as making good progress, and
67% likely to achieve the desired outcome. In addition, 65% of the performance
indicators met or exceeded target. Risks are also being successfully managed with
the majority being assessed as moderate (67%) or minor (8%).

This report is an exception based report and therefore detail focuses on the areas of
under-performance.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Committee consider the Council Plan 2017/18 mid-year monitoring
report to monitor under performance and request further information as
appropriate.

Page 65



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE COUNCIL PLAN 2017/23 MONITORING REPORT

1.01

The Council Plan monitoring reports give an explanation of the progress being
made toward the delivery of the impacts set out in the 2017/23 Council Plan.
The narrative is supported by performance indicators and / or milestones
which evidence achievement. In addition, there is an assessment of the
strategic risks and the level to which they are being controlled.

1.02

This is an exception based report and detail therefore focuses on the areas of
under-performance.

1.03

Monitoring our Activities

Each of the sub-priorities have high level activities which are monitored over
time. ‘Progress’ monitors progress against scheduled activity and has been
categorised as follows: -

e RED: Limited Progress — delay in scheduled activity; not on track

e AMBER: Satisfactory Progress — some delay in scheduled activity, but
broadly on track

e GREEN: Good Progress — activities completed on schedule, on track

A RAG status is also given as an assessment of our level of confidence at this
point in time in achieving the ‘outcome(s)’ for each sub-priority. Outcome has
been categorised as: -

e RED: Low — lower level of confidence in the achievement of the
outcome(s)

e AMBER: Medium — uncertain level of confidence in the achievement of
the outcome(s)

e GREEN: High — full confidence in the achievement of the outcome(s)

1.04

In summary our overall progress against the high level activities is: -

ACTIVITES PROGRESS
e We are making good (green) progress in 51 (88%).
e We are making satisfactory (amber) progress in 7 (12%).

ACTIVITIES OUTCOME

e We have a high (green) level of confidence in the achievement of 39
(67%).

e We have a medium (amber) level of confidence in the achievement of
19 (33%).

e We have a low (red) level of confidence in the achievement of 0 (0%).

1.05

Monitoring our Performance

Analysis of performance against the Improvement Plan performance
indicators is undertaken using the RAG (Red, Amber Green) status. This is
defined as follows: -

Page 66




e RED equates to a position of under-performance against target.

e AMBER equates to a mid-position where improvement may have been
made but performance has missed the target.

e GREEN equates to a position of positive performance against target.

1.06 | Analysis of current levels of performance shows the following: -
e 46 (65%) had achieved a green RAG status
e 18 (25%) had achieved an amber RAG status
e 7 (10%) had achieved a red RAG status
1.07 | There are no performance indicators (Pl) showing a red RAG status for
current performance identified for the Environment Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
1.08 | Monitoring our Risks
Analysis of the current risk levels for the strategic risks identified in the
Improvement Plan is as follows: -
e 1(2%) is insignificant (green)
o 4 (8%) are minor (yellow)
e 32 (67%) are moderate (amber)
e 11(23%) are major (red)
e 0 (0%) are severe (black)
1.09 | The major (red) risk identified for the Environment Overview & Scrutiny
Committee is: -
Priority: Green Council
Risk: Funding will not be secured for priority flood alleviation schemes.
Grant availability continues to be monitored. A five year programme of capital
works and flood alleviation schemes has been developed based on
transparent criteria in line with Welsh Government guidance to feed into the
national pipeline programme. These projects have been assessed on
affordability and ability to maximise capital funding from internal and external
sources. The required skill sets to implement effective and innovative flood
risk management continue to be developed within the team.
2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
2.01 | There are no specific resource implications for this report.

Page 67




3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | The Council Plan Priorities are monitored by the appropriate Overview and
Scrutiny Committees according to the priority area of interest.

3.02 | Chief Officers have contributed towards reporting of relevant information.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Progress against the risks identified in the Council Plan is included in the
report at Appendix 1. Summary information for the risks assessed as major
(red) is covered in paragraph 1.09 above.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 - Council Plan 2017/18 Mid-Year Progress Report — Green
Council.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Council Plan 2017/18: http://www.flintshire.qov.uk/en/Resident/Council-
and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx
Contact Officer: Margaret Parry-Jones
Telephone: 01352 702324
E-mail: Margaret.parry-jones@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Council Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of the
Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009
to set Improvement Objectives and publish a Council Plan.

7.02 | Risks: These are assessed using the improved approach to risk

management endorsed by Audit Committee in June 2015. The new approach,
includes the use of a new and more sophisticated risk assessment matrix
which provides greater opportunities to show changes over time.

Page 68



http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx
mailto:Margaret.parry-jones@flintshire.gov.uk

7.03

Risk Likelihood and Impact Matrix

Catastrophic ¥

Critical Y

Marginal

Impact Severity

Negligible

Y A A
Unlikely Significant | Very High EHI:T::IY
(5%) (30%) (50%) (65%) Ty
Likelihood & Percentage of risk happening

The new approach to risk assessment was created

in response to

recommendations in the Corporate Assessment report from the Wales Audit

Office and Internal Audit.

Page 69




This page is intentionally left blank



)

¢ )J interplan®

(\U A CAMMS SOLUTION

Mid-year Council Plan 2017/18 Progress Report
Green Council

-
%Iintshire County Council

\l
H

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL Print Date: 07-Nov-2017

www.Cammsgroup.com | | . .

-y




Flintshire County Council Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017

4 Green Council

Actions

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

% RAG RAG
25.00%

4.1.1.1 Improve, protect and enhance the built
environment

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

Between April and June initial scoping of the Local Heritage Plan strategy content was completed by the Built Conservation Team however, further progress was delayed while waiting
the outcome of Redesign Work. Initial scoping of the strategy was challenged by Cabinet Members as not incorporating aspects such as tourism and countryside heritage or key
heritage sites and projects such as Bailey Hill and Flint Castle. This was not the intended purpose behind the proposal to develop this strategy from within the Planning and
Environment portfolio. The intention was to deal specifically with matters relating to the built Conservation function within P&E, relating to listed buildings, buildings at risk, listed
building enforcement, development within conservation areas, and to serve as a promotional and bidding tool for capital funding which the Built Conservation Team has not had for a
Uumber of years. It also aligns with the Heritage Act and the publication by Welsh Government in May 2017 of Technical Advice Note 24 The Historic Environment, as well as work
\streams now emerging from the North Wales Built Heritage Service Redesign work. The scope of this strategy will be revisited to narrow it to the issues outlined above, and rename as
l%he Flintshire Built Conservation Strategy. The strategy will be publicised to indicate how it can influence development of a wider corporate Flintshire Heritage Strategy in the future.

In
Progress

Lynne Fensome - Support
Manager Environment

01-Apr-2017

31-Mar-2018

b 2 | "\RV\

Nast Updated: 31-0ct-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

4.1.1.2 Manage our natural environment and accessible |Lynne Fensome - Support
green-space networks to deliver health, well-being and |Manager Environment
resilience goals.

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

We are delivering projects set out within the ESD grant application, including flood defence, biodiversity duty and green-space enhancement-Flood Defence The allocation of this part
of the single revenue grant is primarily used to support employee costs in delivering the duties placed on the Council as a Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) Key milestones include :
Implementation and continued development of Asset Management Expert (AMX) as the LLFA Flood Risk Asset Register issuing of consents under S23 of the Land Drainage Act
Investigation of 6 flood events Fulfilled role as a statutory consultee to the Local Planning Authority in relation to the review of proposed surface Water management schemes on new
development to promote compliance with national standards Development of a 5 year programme of capital works and flood alleviation schemes Prepared a draft flood risk
management plan Enhancing sense of place in Flintshire's greenspaces The allocation of this part of the grant is being used to deliver Flinthsire's Greenspace Strategy, improve
greenspace facilities to encourage access, enjoyment and well-being and to facilitate engagement through arts in the community. Key Milestones include : Pen y Maes wood — 200
meters widened and surfaced Preshaven — 150 m board walk renewed Point of Ayr 50m new path to bird hide Installation of two three valley access barriers at Liwyni to reduce anti -

In
Progress

01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2018 50.00%

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 2 of 14




Flintshire County Council Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017

social behaviour 300m of new step free boardwalk, replacing steps and handrail, installation of interpretation panels Wepre Park Surfacing and improvements of footpath near Ewloe
castle (10m), creating a sitting area and step refurbishment to golf course Installing four benches and a view box in the Old Hall garden. Arts in the Park. Snake sculpture created to
utilise dam excavation arising’s. Interactive sculpture for children and community in dell. 2 days creating animated film through engagement with visitors. Two films and artwork
created which will come back for display in the visitor centre after showing at Theatre Clwyd. Garden sculpture day event. Supported Friends of Wepre to run an art session and photo
and poetry event Cherry tree planting with community Buckley Higher common Greenfield Dock — seeding up of the west sides bed Community Greenspace Involvement The allocation
of this part of the grant is being used to encourage and enable community volunteering int eh management of their local greenspace. Key milestones include : Coastal volunteer team -
3000 hours 1000 hours in group time in support to the coastal ranger ‘Guardians of the Castle’ and ‘Arch’ over the last six months have volunteered 500 hours at Wepre Park, with a
further 2000+ hours from individual volunteer support for the Wepre Ranger Halkyn Mountain, Liwyni and Talacre consultative groups have been facilitated plus support for Friends of
Bagillt and Wepre Positive environmental action in local greenspaces Grant allocated to supporting Mold Spring Clean, the Big Dee Day and Greenfield Valley Day. Key milestones
include : Big Dee Day — 6 counties involved. Over 250 people and around 300 bags rubbish collected plus a few tonnes of flytip in Flintshire alone. 412 gorse plants, a meadow raked and
loads of scrub cleared. 20m of path laid, 6m of boardwalk built, trees removed from Moel Famau, footpaths repairs on Snowdon, scrub cleared and benches painted in Cheshire and
Shropshire scrub cleared for skylarks 70 students from Coleg Cambria Greenfield Valley day — Tesco’s support for clean-up with 65 bags of rubbish cleared. Local schools involved in
bulb planting car parks. Biodiversity Duty Delivery Plan and the Biodiversity and ecosystems resilience duty Working for long term benefits for natural resources and nature
conservation in an integrated approach with communities across Flintshire. Key milestones include : Internal communication strategy to improve understanding of the Biodiversity and
Sustainability requirements of new legislation Work towards accreditation under the Bee Friendly Wales scheme Strategic invasive non-natives species control Species/habitat specific
action including relevant surveys (Great Crested Newt, Dormouse,Sand lizard, natterjack toad, bat, badger and ancient woodland. Ongoing management of County Hall meadow

_6ducation and Awareness programme Draft Tree, woodland and planting strategy produced

ARDL

D
N ast Updated: 31-Oct-2017
ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG
4.1.1.3 Maximising the potential of Council assets for  |Sadie Smith - Energy In 01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2018 50.00%
energy efficiency: Control/reduction of Council energy |Conservation Engineer Progress GREEN GREEN

consumption and thereby cost.

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

Energy efficiency projects completed or in progress to reduce carbon emissions and energy use include: -Upgrading of external lighting at Broughton CP School to LED lights. -Upgrading
of heating controls at Aston Flying Start to improve control of the heating and hot water. -Upgrading of heating controls at Ysgol Bryn Garth. -Installation of a battery storage system at
Ysgol Abermorddu to store excess solar generation. -Completion of lighting upgrade (LED and T5) at Hawarden Village School -Completion of a 10kWp solar Photovoltaic (PV)
installation at Broughton CP School -Surveying of sites for lighting upgrades is in progress with projects to be completed by 31st March 2018 Delivery of Phase 2 of the renewable
energy action plan is in progress following a workshop with Officers in Valuation and Estates, and Planning, 6 potential brownfield sites were identified as possible locations for
renewable energy generation. Initial feasibility assessments have been completed for these sites. 3 sites have been prioritised and detailed feasibility studies completed. The next steps
will be to assess the final business case once a formal grid connection offer has been received. A high level review of the Council's agricultural estate has been completed assessing
energy generation potential, acreage available and possible planning/legal constraints. Further feasibility will be completed. Potential sites for hydro power have been assessed with
Wepre Brook prioritised. A detailed design has been completed and planning permission applied for. Assessment has been completed by Coed Cymru/Forestry Officer which indicated

potential for biomass crops on the agricultural estate in Sealand as well utilising waste wood and timber from public and private woodlands.

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 3 of 14




Flintshire County Council Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017

Last Updated: 31-Oct-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

% RAG RAG

4.1.1.4 Maximise the recovery and recycling of waste
with a view to reducing the reliance on landfill.

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

Ongoing recycling awareness campaigns and an interim residual waste treatment contract have ensured that Council remains committed to maximising recovery opportunities and
diversion from landfill where possible.

Harvey Mitchell - Waste and
Ancillary Services Manager

In
Progress

01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2018

Last Updated: 02-Nov-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

% RAG RAG
100.00%

‘ .1.1.5 Strengthen regional air quality collaboration to
help promote better health and well-being outcomes
-l#\CTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

A regional air quality assessment on behalf of the North Wales local authorities has been undertaken which meets our statutory requirements by submitting the report to Welsh

Government by 30th September. The need to develop a local strategy has been highlighted by the Public Service Board, and work is underway to identify how Flintshire can further
improve air quality.

Sian Jones - Public Protection
Manager

Complet
ed

01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2018

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

% RAG RAG

4.1.1.6 Identification of the Local Development Plan
preferred strategy

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

The Draft Local Development Plan preferred strategy has been presented to and endorsed by Planning Strategy Group. Prior notification events were held with members, and with
Town and Community Councils during July to raise awareness of the Preferred Strategy ahead of being reported to Cabinet. A further technical report was presented to and endorsed
by The Planning Strategy Group on 27th July outlining i) an assessment of candidate sites in terms of their broad compliance with the Preferred Strategy and ii) the requirement to issue
invitation for alternative sites as part of the Preferred Strategy consultation. A progress update report on the Preferred Strategy was presented to and endorsed by Planning Strategy

Lynne Fensome - Support
Manager Environment

In
Progress

01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2018

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 4 of 14




Flintshire County Council Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017

Group in September outlining reasons for the delay in starting the consultation process. The Preferred Strategy was presented to and approved by Cabinet on 26th September.
Consultation on the Preferred Strategy will commence on 9th November 2017.

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

% RAG RAG
25.00%

31-Mar-2018

In
Progress

Katie Wilby - Transportation and 01-Apr-2017

Logistics Manager

4.2.1.1 Access and use available grant funding to
support Council priorities for accessing employment,
health and leisure and education.

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

We have successfully bid for 2017/18 Local Transport Funding (LTF), and a grant has been awarded to improve bus services and encourage walking and cycling in Deeside. Part of this
money will be spent on developing new bus interchanges and bus priority measures on the B5129 Shotton Corridor and bus infrastructure on Deeside Industrial Park, while the
remainder will support the introduction of active travel routes within the Deeside Business Park. £600,000 Access to Employment £325,000 Developments for Passenger Growth
(Deeside Corridor) £10,000 Active Travel —integrated network mapping £100,000 B5129 Bus Corridor and Quality Partnership Scheme £289,500 community transport hubs

D ast Updated: 01-Nov-2017
(&,

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG

50.00%

31-Mar-2018

In
Progress

Barry Wilkinson - Highways
Networks Manager

4.2.1.2 Prioritise the Council's road infrastructure for 01-Apr-2017
repairs and maintenance and implement programmes
of work within available funding in order to improve the
resilience, efficiency and reliability of the transport

network.

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
The highway network has been reviewed and assessed for investment need and repairs. The capital programme for preventative maintenance has been developed, tendered and
implemented across the network.

Last Updated: 30-Oct-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

% RAG RAG

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 5 of 14



Flintshire County Council

Date From:01/04/2017 T0:30/09/2017

4.2.1.3 Work closely with the communities to develop [Katie Wilby - Transportation and In 01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2018 50.00%
innovative and sustainable community based transport |Logistics Manager Progress GREEN AMBER
schemes.

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

We are continuing to work actively with communities to support and develop alternative transport options. 3 out of the 6 proposed pilot transport schemes are now up and running in:
i) Higher Kinnerton-Broughton) ii) Penyffordd-Buckley iii) Northop Hall-Connah’s Quay

Last Updated: 02-Nov-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

% RAG RAG
80.00%

4.2.1.4 Deliver a compliant, safe and integrated
transport service

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

TThe Integrated Transport Unit (ITU) has administered a transformational review of the Council’s passenger transport services over the last 18 months to ensure that all routes are
aLompliant. The service has moved to a new method of procurement known as a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS), allowing new suppliers to apply to join at any point during its
i

fetime. The new arrangements are aimed at reducing the workload both within the ITU and local supply chain. The new contracts will operate for a period of 4 years or for the length

Lgf the pupils or students education at a particular school or college or until the need for a specific transport provision ceases.
D)

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

Katie Wilby - Transportation and
Logistics Manager

In
Progress

01-Apr-2017

31-Mar-2018

ol abov
| g

Performance Indicators

Pre. Year Period Perf.

KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG
Actual
Actual Trend

IP4.1.3.1M01 Percentage of No Data 33.77 20
environmentally efficient front line
operational vehicles to Euro 6 standard.

N/A 33.77 20

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 6 of 14



Date From:01/04/2017 T0:30/09/2017

Flintshire County Council

Lead Officer: Lynne Fensome - Support Manager Environment
Reporting Officer: lan Bushell - Technical and Performance Manager

Aspirational Target:
Progress Comment: We are currently running 34% of the fleet to Euro 6 standard. A schedule is in place to re-new the remaining vehicles to Euro 6 Standard

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

Pre. Year Period Period Perf.
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

Actual Target

Actual Trend
IP4.1.3.2M02 Number of street furniture No Data 1520 1500 N/A 4337 3000
and street light units replaced with LED
lighting.

Lead Officer: Lynne Fensome - Support Manager Environment
Reporting Officer: Darell Jones - Operations Manager (North and Streetlighting)

spirational Target: 6000.00
rogress Comment: The number of lanterns changed has exceeded target and will allow the project to be delivered within the projected timeframe. Energy and CO2 savings are now

Deing realised as reported by our energy supplier with savings in real terms being made. However a 16% increase in base energy costs has been placed upon the service by the energy

upplier.

11 ARV
YA~

TLst Updated: 01-Nov-2017

Pre. Year . Perf.
. . Period )
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

Actual SERE] Trend

‘ 15.31 2

IP4.1.3.3M03 Reduce our carbon footprint 1.85 15.31 2
across our Council buildings (non housing)

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 7 of 14



Date From:01/04/2017 T0:30/09/2017

Flintshire County Council

Lead Officer: Lynne Fensome - Support Manager Environment
Reporting Officer: Sadie Smith - Energy Conservation Engineer

Aspirational Target:
Progress Comment: figures are not weather corrected at this point in the year. The percentage reduction can be attributed to:

i) The transfer of leisure centres and libraries to Aura who were historically high consumers of energy.
ii) The transfer of heating fuel at Ysgol Terrig and Ysgol Parc y Llan from LPG to natural gas has contributed to the reduction as LPG has a higher carbon emission factor than gas.

iii) The general reduction in the number of assets has had a positive effect, for example, the closure of 2 schools, community asset transfers.

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

Period Period M
Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

Pre. Year

KPI Title Period
Actual Actual Target Trend

N/A 70.53 68

IP4.1.4.1M01 (PAM/030) Percentage of No Data 70.3 68
waste reused, recycled or composted

yead Officer: Lynne Fensome - Support Manager Environment

Reporting Officer: Danielle Richards - Area Recycling Officer

I;\spirational Target:
Rrogress Comment: There has been an increase in the tonnage of dry recycling collected via kerbside recycling schemes. However, there has also been a decrease in the overall

onnage of Soil and Rubble arising from highways and area construction works. This has resulted in a slight downturn on the quarterly performance achieved in Q2 2016/17

O] "\RV\

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

Pre. Year . . Perf.
. . Period Period .
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG
Actual Target
Actual Trend
IP4.1.4.2M02 Average recycling rate across No Data 78.39 80 N/A 78.34 80
all HRC sites AMBER AMBER
CAMMS Page 8 of 14

07-Nov-2017



Flintshire County Council

Date From:01/04/2017 T0:30/09/2017

Lead Officer: Lynne Fensome - Support Manager Environment
Reporting Officer: Danielle Richards - Area Recycling Officer
Aspirational Target:

Progress Comment: Household Waste (HWRC) Recycling Centre performance has increase by 6.5% compared with the same period last year (71.48%). Improvement works carried out

at both Buckley & Mold HWRC sites and an emphasis on residual waste bag splitting to increase material diversion across the sites have made a positive contribution to the overall
recycling performance.

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

Pre. Year Period Period Perf.
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG

Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG
Actual Target
Actual Trend

IP4.2.2.4M04 Percentage of inspections 0 15.01 14 ‘ 14.97 14
undertaken to ensure reinstatements meet
the required standards

ad Officer: Lynne Fensome - Support Manager Environment
eporting Officer: Sam Tulley - Road Space Manager
spirational Target:

rogress Comment: Flintshire County Council inspect a percentage of works undertaken by Utility companies working on the highway network. The purpose of these inspections are to
sure streets are reconstructed to the required standards, reducing the need for future remedial works which causes unnecessary congestion and safeguarding the highway asset. By
ndertaking the inspections and working with the Utilities and their contractors, Flintshire are able to promote good working practices.

Last Updated: 24-Oct-2017

Pre. Year . . Perf.
. . Period Period .
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG
Actual Target
Actual Trend

IP4.2.4.1MO01 Percentage of contracts 0 85.44 100 (@@ O) ‘ 85.44 100

awarded that are financially compliant AMBER

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS

Page 9 of 14



Date From:01/04/2017 T0:30/09/2017

Flintshire County Council

Lead Officer: Lynne Fensome - Support Manager Environment
Reporting Officer: Ceri Hansom - Integrated Transport Unit Manager

Aspirational Target:
Progress Comment: 264 routes (school, adult social care, local bus routes) have been through a compliant tendering exercise. Following additional or change in demand for travel from

September 2017, a small number of routes will need to be procured within the next 3-4 months (approx. 25 routes) and a further procurement exercise will be required for college

transport services (approx. 35 routes).

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

Pre. Year Period Period Perf.
Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

KPI Title Period Actual Tareet
Actual g Trend
N/A

25 25

25 25

IP4.2.4.2M02 The percentage of safety No Data
compliant checks delivered

ad Officer: Lynne Fensome - Support Manager Environment
eporting Officer: Ceri Hansom - Integrated Transport Unit Manager

Aspirational Target:
I?’rogress Comment: 25% have been achieved since start of September 2017. Daily monitoring and compliance checks taking place on site at schools and day care centres. The aim is to

Elgchieve 100% by Jan 2018

"\RV\ 1

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

RISKS

Strategic Risk

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK L) RISK

LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
Open

Tom Woodall - Access Lynne Fensome - Support
Ambe: “
and Natural Manager Environment ‘ i

Environment Manager

Reduction of the Single Environment Grant

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 10 of 14



Flintshire County Council Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017

Potential Effect: Income targets not met

Potential reduction could impact staffing resource to maintain service delivery

Management Controls: Raised as a pressure for 2017/18.

Progress Comment: Welsh Government have reduced the Environmental and Sustainable Development grant by £110k for 2017/18. This was better than the forecasted expectation
therefore the allocations across the two portfolios have been maintained and projects continue to be delivered. However this remains a risk in that the quality of the bid submissions
need to be maintained to ensure full draw down of the grant. Further reductions for 2018/19 again will lead to a potential reduction in services that can be delivered

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
Limitations on suitable Council sites with sufficient Sadie Smith - Energy Lynne Fensome - Support e Open
area for larger scale renewables schemes and suitable | Conservation Engineer Manager Environment i =

connections to the electric grid

Potential Effect: Failure to meet Carbon Reduction target
anagement Controls: Continue to review the availability of sites
rogress Comment: We are continuing with an ongoing review of the available sites, particularly in terms of the agricultural estate and the viability of these sites. We have developed a

ood working relationship with Scottish Power Energy networks which has allowed for informal discussions to take place ahead of formal plans being submitted. This will help in
orkload capacity of the team and in prioritising the most suitable sites. Alternatives to grid connections are also considered as part of the process to provide more innovative solutions
ch as selling to a large user which may be a more financially viable option given the costs of connecting to the grid and ultimately delivers both greater financial savings and greater

income opportunities

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK

LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS

Funding will not be secured for priority flood Ruairi Barry - Senior Lynne Fensome - Support
alleviation schemes Engineer Manager Environment

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 11 of 14



Date From:01/04/2017 T0:30/09/2017

Flintshire County Council

Potential Effect: Flooding of homes and businesses across the county
Potential homelessness

Management Controls: Review our approach to funding capital projects
Progress Comment: Grant availability continues to be monitored. A five year programme of capital works and flood alleviation schemes has been developed based on transparent

criteria in line with Welsh Government guidance to feed into the national pipeline programme. These projects have been assessed on affordability and ability to maximise capital
funding from internal and external sources. The required skill sets to implement effective and innovative flood risk management continue to be developed within the team.

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
Customer expectations around the delivery of flood Ruairi Barry - Senior Lynne Fensome - Support G _— Open
alleviation schemes are not effectively managed Engineer Manager Environment =

Potential Effect: Reduced public confidence to effectively manage flood risk

anagement Controls: Review our approach to funding capital projects
rogress Comment: A five year programme of capital works and flood alleviation schemes has been developed based on transparent criteria in line with Welsh Government guidance

o feed into the national pipeline programme.

st Updated: 01-Nov-2017

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
LEAD OFFICER PPORTIN FFICER
OFFIC SUFFO G OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
Lack of holistic air quality data across the region Dave L Jones - Pollution | Lynne Fensome - Support s _— Closed
leading to on cost for the Council to manage its own Control Officer Manager Environment >
review

Potential Effect: Knock on effect for capacity within the team to manage own review

Management Controls: Full engagement with the regional project
Progress Comment: The pollution control team has fully engaged with the regional project, and consultants appointed to produce the regional report. All data has been supplied and

verified for inclusion in the report, and submitted to Welsh Government within the required timeframe

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 12 of 14



Flintshire County Council Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017

RISK INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK

TITLE LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING
Insufficient funding to ensure our highways
infrastructure remains safe and capable of supporting
economic growth

TREND
ARROW

RISK
STATUS

Barry Wilkinson -
Highways Networks
Manager

Lynne Fensome - Support
Manager Environment

Potential Effect: Deteriation of the condition of highways in Flintshire

Management Controls: Focussed investment through the funding of schemes that maintain or reduce the pace of deterioration of the condition of the main highway infrastructure.
Road Safety Scheme identification for improvement to routes through available funding.

Maximize funding received through the quality of the bid submission by aligning submissions to follow successful bid model techniques.

Progress Comment: Preventative and corrective work will be completed across a number of improvement and maintenance schemes of the highest ranked sites within the network as
planned, in accordance with available funding.

Last Updated: 27-Oct-2017

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK

LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS

Ceri Hansom - Integrated
Transport Unit Manager

ufficient funding will not be found to continue to
ovide subsidised bus services.

Lynne Fensome - Support
Manager Environment

Potential Effect: Decrease in bus services to residents, particularly in rural areas

Management Controls: Develop services so that they become more commercially viable

Progress Comment: Withdrawal of subsidies could affect the viability of some commercial bus services which may impact on people with no alternative choice of travel particularly
rural communities.

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

INITIAL RISK ' CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
Supply chain resilience Katie Wilby - Lynne Fensome - Support Open
Transportation and Manager Environment s i =

Logistics Manager

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 13 of 14



Flintshire County Council Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017

Potential Effect: Transport services cannot be provided

Management Controls: i) Management of safety compliance checks.

ii) Management of financially compliant contracts

Progress Comment: The control measures have been put in place to mitigate against another major transport services provider going into administration or not able to meet the
required operating standards. New processes have been established and officers are carrying out both safety compliance checks and also finance compliance checks on contractors

Last Updated: 26-Oct-2017

TREND
ARROW

RISK INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK
— LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING
Lynne Fensome - Support

Manager Environment

RISK
STATUS

Barry Wilkinson -
Highways Networks
Manager

Adverse weather conditions on the highway network

Potential Effect: Increase in cost to future planned repairs as network deteriorates beyond that can be rectified by planned maintenance
crease in insurance claims
anagement Controls: Targeting funding on those schemes that maintain or reduce the pace of deterioration of the condition of the main highway infrastructure.
rogress Comment: Operational Managers review weather forecasts and confirm appropriate actions, which may result in the allocation of direct labour resource to avoid impact on
ichway network users.

Last Updated: 27-Oct-2017

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
RATING RATING ARROW STATUS

Yellow Yellow PN Open

Potential Effect: i) Planned programme of community transport hubs not delivered. iii) Decreased passenger numbers on bus services.

iii) Increase in individual car usage

Management Controls: Realistic deliverable programme for 2017/18 of 4 Community Transport Hubs that have been supported by the local communities and Town and Community
Councils

Progress Comment: We are continuing to work with local communities and Town and Community Councils on delivering the 4 hubs that were developed as projects in 2016/17, and
use and customer satisfaction of the Higher Kinnerton hub.

LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS

Lack of community support for transport options Ceri Hansom - Integrated | Lynne Fensome - Support
Transport Unit Manager Manager Environment

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 14 of 14



Agenda Item 7

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Tuesday 12 December 2017
Report Subject Forward Work Programme
Cabinet Member Not applicable
Report Author Environment Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members. By
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues. A copy of the Forward Work
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward
Work Programme for the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the
Committee be authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between
meetings, as the need arises.

Page 85



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01

Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number of
sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & Scrutiny
Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can be
referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council or
Chief Officers. Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet Work
Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02

In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
Is it an area of major change or risk?

Are there issues of concern in performance?

Is there new Government guidance of legislation?

Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

abrwnN -~

1.03

At the meeting of the Constitution & Democratic Services Committee which
was held on 25" October, it was resolved that each committee should be
canvassed for views on meeting preference as part of their forward work
programme item. The options are as follows:

9.30am | 10am 1.30pm | 2pm 4.30pm | 6.00pm | Alternate | Rotate Rotate
am/pm 10am/2pm/ | am/
4.30pm pm/

6pm

The Environment Overview & Scrutiny committee, which currently meets on
a Tuesday morning at 10.00, is asked to express a preference for its
meeting pattern. This information will be reported back to the Constitution &
Democratic Services Committee.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

None as a result of this report.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

None as a result of this report.

Page 86




5.00 | APPENDICES
5.01 | Appendix 1 — Draft Forward Work Programme
6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | None.

Contact Officer: Margaret Parry-Jones

Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

Telephone: 01352 702427

E-mail: margaret.parry-jones@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of

the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Page 87



mailto:margaret.parry-jones@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Forward Work Programme

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

Fly Tipping on Public
and Private land
(development session
prior to meeting)

Strategy

Transportation

Date of Subject Purpose of Report/Presentation Scrutiny Responsible/Contact | Submission
Meeting Focus Officer Deadline
Tuesday 16t Greenfield Valley To receive an update on the developments | Assurance Chief Officer Planning
January 2018 Museum Heritage Park | at Greenfield Valley Heritage Park. and Environment
visit and presentation
10.00 am -
Greenfield Review of Grass Cutting | To review the Policy and provide Options Chief Officer
Valley Policy comments to Cabinet. Appraisal Streetscene and
Transportation
Tuesday 13th Q3 Council Plan To enable members to fulfil their scrutiny Performance
March 2018 Monitoring role in relation to performance monitoring. | Monitoring/ Facilitator
10.00 am Assurance
g? Review of Highway and | To review the policy in line with the revised
& Car Park Safety national guidelines. Policy Barry Wilkinson
do Inspection and Review
© Intervention Level and
Response to Policy
North East Wales Bus To seek a recommendation to Cabinet to Options Chief Officer
Strategy approve the North East Wales Bus Appraisal Streetscene and

Tuesday 17th
April 2018

10.00 am




ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

Date of Subject Purpose of Report/Presentation Scrutiny Responsible/Contact | Submission
Meeting Focus Officer Deadline
Tuesday 12th Year-end Reporting & To enable members to fulfil their scrutiny Performance | Facilitator
June 2018 Council Plan Monitoring | role in relation to performance monitoring. | Monitoring/

Assurance
10.00 am

Items to be scheduled

Subject

North Wales Metro System

Enforcement and Environmental Care

Contact Centres review

06 abed

National Resources Wales

Decriminalised Parking Since 2013 — request from Member

Flintshire Bridge Converter Station (site visit?)

Site visit to Parc Adfer — date in February to be confirmed.




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Pest Control
	Appendix A - Schedule of Charges
	Appendix B - Publicity Leaflet

	5 Mold Flood Alleviation Scheme - Review of Options Feasibility
	Appendix A - Letter from Welsh Government
	Appendix B - Typical stages of FCERN capital projects
	Appendix C - Current funding options
	Appendix D - Feasibility Study report by Waterco Ltd

	6 Council Plan 2017/18 - Mid year monitoring
	Appendix 1 - Council Plan 2017/18 Mid-Year Progress Report – Green Council

	7 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme (Environment)


